
VERSION 1.0 

February 19, 2020 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
FEBRUARY 19, 2020 

SUPERSTITION FIRE & MEDICAL DISTRICT BOARD 
TODD HOUSE, BOARD CHAIRMAN 

KATHLEEN CHAMBERLAIN, BOARD CLERK 

JEFF CROSS, BOARD DIRECTOR 

JASON MOELLER, BOARD DIRECTOR 

LARRY STRAND, BOARD DIRECTOR 



  Superstition Fire & Medical District 
Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 

February 19, 2020 
 

Mission Statement 
Preserve Life ~ Protect Property ~ Add Value to OUR Community 

 

Superstition Fire / Medical Board Meeting Agenda February 19 2020 

The Board will hold a meeting on Wednesday, February 19, 2020. The meeting will be held at the 
Superstition Fire & Medical District’s Administrative Office, located at 565 N. Idaho Road, Apache 
Junction, Arizona. The meeting will be open to the public and will begin at 5:30 p.m. local time. 

 
A. Call to Order 
B. Pledge of Allegiance 
C. Roll Call 

 
The following agenda items are scheduled for discussion at the board meeting. The Governing Board may 
or may not decide to take action on any or all items. The order of the agenda items may or may not be 
taken in the order listed. 
 

1. Review and approval of the January 2020 financial reports and bank reconciliations. 
(BOD #2020-02-01) 

 
2.  Recognition of employee performance, achievements, and special recognition for 

community members. (BOD #2020-02-02) 
 
3.  Call to the Public. (BOD #2020-02-N/A) 

A.R.S. §38-431.01(H) A public body may make an open call to the public during a public meeting, subject to reasonable time, 
place, and manner restrictions, to all individuals to address the public body on any issue within the jurisdiction of the public 
body. At the conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the public body may respond to criticism made by 
those who have addressed the public body, may ask staff to review a matter, or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda. 
However, members of the public body shall not discuss or take legal action on matters raised during an open call to the public 
unless the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 

 
4.  Consideration and possible approval of all consent agenda items listed below  

(BOD #2020-02-03): 
 
A. Board Meeting Minutes from January 15, 2020  
B. Executive Meeting Minutes from January 15, 2020 
C. Renewal of Contract for Property and Casualty Insurance Service 
D. Arizona Department of Forestry and Fire Management Cooperative Fire Rate Schedule 
E. Contract Renewal with PhoenixNAP Data Center and Colocation 
F. Purchase of two (2) LifePac 15 Heart Monitors   

 
5. Discussion of the Fiscal Year 2020/2021 Tax Abstract for Pinal and Maricopa Counties, 

and its impact on the development of the Fiscal Year 2020/2021 Revenue Budget.   
      (BOD #2020-02-04) 
 
 



Superstition Fire / Medical Board Meeting Agenda February 19, 2020 

   
6.   Discussion and presentation of the Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS) 

actuarial report overview, and an update of the District’s DROP participants.  (BOD 
#2020-02-05) 

 
7.   Discussion, presentation and possible approval of the following Policies brought for 

review at the January 15, 2020 Board Meeting for final approval at the February 19, 
2020 Board Meeting.  (BOD #2020-02-06) 

 
• 402 – Fire Investigations 
• 409 – Youth Firesetter Referrals 
• 410 – Fire Watch Services 
• 703 – Use of District Vehicles 
• 704 – Information Technology Use` 
• 707 – Communications Operations 
• 708 – Public Alerts 
• 709 – Photography and Electronic Imaging 
• 1022 - Physical Fitness  
• 1100 - Facility Security 

 
8.  Discussion and presentation of the following Policies brought for review at February 19, 

2020 Board Meeting for final approval at the March 18, 2020 Board Meeting.  (BOD 
#2020-02-07) 
• 600 -  Fire Apparatus Driver/Operator Training 
• 601 – CPR and Automated External Defibrillator Training  
• 602 – Communicable Disease Training Program 
• 603 – Emergency Action Plan and Fire Prevention Plan Training 
• 604 – Hazard Communication Program Training 
• 605 – Hazardous Materials (HAZMAT) Training  
• 606 – Hearing Conservation and Noise Control Training 
• 607 – Heat Illness Prevention Training 
• 608 – Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) Training 
• 609 – National Incident Management System (NIMS) Training 
• 611 – Respiratory Protection Training 
• 612 – Wildland Fire Shelter Deployment Training 
• 613 – Training Records 
• 614 – Firefighter Health, Safety and Survival Training 
• 1014 – Personnel Complaints 
• 1020 – Grievance Procedure 

 

9.  Discussion and possible approval of the Health Equity (H.S.A. provider) integration with  
     Nationwide 457(b) program.  (BOD #2020-02-08) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Superstition Fire / Medical Board Meeting Agenda February 19, 2020 

 
10. Reports. (BOD #2020-02-09) 

Senior Leadership Team (SLT): 
Fire Chief Mike Farber 
Assistant Chief of Emergency Operations Richard Mooney 
Assistant Chief of Planning & Logistics Richard Ochs 
Deputy Chief Jeff Cranmer 
Administrative Services Director Anna Butel  
Finance Director Roger Wood 
Captain John Walka 
Transportation Services Manager Billy Warren 

11.   New Business / Future Agenda Items. (BOD #2020-02-10) 
 
12. Announcements (BOD #2020-02-N/A) 
 
13. Adjourn (BOD #2020-02-11) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
NOTICE: The Governing Board may go into executive session for the purpose of obtaining legal advice from the Fire District's attorney(s) on 
any of the above agenda items pursuant to A.R.S. 38-431.03(A)(3). 
One or more members of the Governing Board may attend the meeting telephonically. 
Governing Board meeting agenda dated and posted (at least 24-hours before the scheduled meeting date and time). 
 
Posted on: February 13, 2020 
At:  1500 Hours 
By: Sherry Mueller 
 
The Superstition Fire & Medical District (SFMD) Administrative Office Board Meeting Room is accessible to the handicapped. In compliance with 
the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), those with special needs, such as large-type face print or other reasonable accommodations may request 
those through the SFMD Administration Office (480-982-4440) at least 24-hours before the Board Meeting.  

 

 

 

  



Go to Item 2 
 

Go to Agenda 

Governing Board Meeting – February 19, 2020 
Agenda Item: 1 
BOD#: 2020-02-01 
 
Agenda Item Title 
Review and approval of the January 2020 financial reports and bank reconciliations. 
 
Submitted By 
Finance Director Roger Wood 
 
Background/Discussion 
The District’s accounting department staff prepares the monthly financial reports. The District’s annual budget, 
which is adopted by the Board each June for the following fiscal year (July 1 – June 30), is formatted to mirror 
the monthly financial statements. The financial reports provide the Board with a monthly recap of expenditures 
and revenues, along with year-to-date account balance information.  
 
In compliance with A.R.S. §48-807(O), the following reports have been added to the monthly financial 
statements packet:  

1. Cash Flow – All Governmental Funds. 
The Cash Flow report consists of the combined cash balances of all District Funds. These balances include 
the General (100), Transport Services (150), Capital Projects (200), Bond Proceeds (300), Special Revenue 
(400), Debt Principal (500), and Debt Interest (600) Funds. The Cash Flow report is updated monthly with 
the actual revenues deposited into and actual expenditures disbursed from the District’s cash accounts. 
It is important to note the revenues and expenditures are reported on a Cash Basis. This report is 
generated to demonstrate that the fire District maintains sufficient cash available to satisfy the projected 
expenditures budgeted over the course of the fiscal year.  

2. Fund Account Bank Reconciliations. 
The reconciliation of each of the District’s Fund Cash Accounts (General (100), Transport Services (150), 
Capital Projects (200), Bond Proceeds (300), Special Revenue (400), Debt Principal (500), and Debt 
Interest (600) Funds) between the Pinal County Treasurer’s monthly bank statement and the District’s 
Fund balance sheet report is provided. To signify Board approval of the monthly financial statements 
and bank reconciliations, the Board Chairman is requested to sign the attached Letter of Acceptance 
which will be kept on file at the District.  

 
Financial Impact(s)/Budget Line Item 
N/A  
 
Enclosure(s) 

*Monthly Financials provided under separate cover 
 

Recommended Motion 
“Motion to approve the January 2020 financial reports and bank reconciliations.” 

 



January 2020 

 

 

Superstition Fire & Medical District 

Governing Board Acceptance of Fire District’s 
Financial Statements and Bank Reconciliations 

 
 

Pursuant to A.R.S. §48-807, by the signature(s) below, the Governing Board of the Superstition Fire & Medical 
District attests to the review and approval of the following financial report(s) of the fire district for the month 
of January 2020: 
 

1. Financial Statement 
2. Bank Reconciliations 

a. General (100) Fund 
b. Transport Services (150) Fund 
c. Capital Projects (200) Fund 
d. Bond Proceeds (300) Fund 
e. Special Projects (400) Fund 
f. Debt Principle (500) Fund 
g. Debt Interest (600) Fund 

 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ _____________________________ 
Todd House, Board Chair  Date 



Go to Item 3 
 

Go to Agenda 

Governing Board Meeting – February 19, 2020 
Agenda Item: 2 
BOD#: 2020-02-02 
 
Agenda Item Title 
Recognition of employee performance, achievements, and special recognition for community members. 
 
Submitted By 
Fire Chief Mike Farber 
Assistant Chief Rick Ochs 
 
Background/Discussion 
This is a recurring monthly item to provide the Board with information concerning superior employee 
performance, achievements, and special recognition for community members.  
 
SFMD Historical Information 
 
Firefighter of the Year Award 
Engineer Robert Vande Krol 
Firefighter Randall Vande Krol 
 
Transportation Services Employee of the Year Award 
EMT Sarah Koupal 
 
Administrative Services Employee of the Year Award 
Account Clerk Specialist Lori Hlavin 
Human Resources Generalist Sherry Mueller 
 
February Service Anniversaries 
30 Years of Service: 
Fire Captain / Paramedic Paul Perkins 
 
20 Years of Service: 
Administrative Services Director Anna Butel 
Fire Captain / Paramedic Carlos Rivera 
 
11 Years of Service: 
Fleet Services Manager Vaughn Croshaw 
 
7 Years of Service:  
Firefighter / Paramedic Dave Endres 
Firefighter Monte Fuller 
Firefighter / Paramedic Chris Furgeson 
Firefighter Anthony Martinez 
 



Go to Item 3 
 

Go to Agenda 

4 Years of Service: 
EMS Coordinator Eileen Blackstone 
Human Resources Generalist Sherry Mueller 
 
2 Years of Service: 
Paramedic Crystal Martin 
 
1 Year of Service: 
Firefighter John Rankin 
Firefighter Matt Leon 
Paramedic Ryan Markham 
Paramedic Kyle Fischer 

 

Firefighter Joe Potter Graduates from the Phoenix Fire Academy on 2/7/2020 

 

 

 



Go to Item 4 
 

Go to Agenda 

Governing Board Meeting – February 19, 2020 
Agenda Item: 3 
BOD#: 2020-02-n/a 
 
Agenda Item Title 
Call to the Public  
 
A.R.S. §38-431.01(H) 
A public body may make an open call to the public during a public meeting, subject to reasonable time, place 
and manner restrictions, to allow individuals to address the public body on any issue within the jurisdiction of 
the public body. 
At the conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the public body may respond to criticism 
made by those who have addressed the public body, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a matter 
be put on a future agenda.   
However, members of the public body shall not discuss or take legal action on matters raised during an open call 
to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 
 
Background / Discussion 
Call to the Public is provided so citizens may address the public body (Governing Board) with matters concerning 
the fire district. Arizona public meeting law provides that the public body may discuss, consider, or decide only 
matters listed on the agenda and other matters related thereto. Since the public body will generally not know 
what specific matters may be raised at call to the public, they will be unable to act until the matter is placed on 
a subsequent meeting agenda (at the Board’s discretion). The Board may also direct staff to follow up on the 
issue with the citizen.  
 
Scheduled 
None  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Go to Item 5 
 

Go to Appendices 
 

Go to Agenda 

Governing Board Meeting – February 19, 2020  
Agenda Item: 4 
BOD#: 2020-02-03 
    
Agenda Item Title 
Consideration and possible approval of all consent agenda items as listed below:  

A. Board Meeting Minutes from January 15, 2020 – Appendix A 
B. Executive Session Minutes from January 15, 2020   
C. Renewal of Contract for Property and Casualty Insurance Service -  Appendix C 
D. AZ  Dept. of Forestry and Fire Management Cooperative Fire Rate Agreement - Appendix D 
E. Contract Renewal with PhoenixNAP Data Center and Colocation – Appendix E 
F. Purchase of two (2) LifePac 15 Heart Monitors – Appendix F 

 
Background/Discussion 
The consent agenda allows the Board of Directors (BOD) to consider contracts, purchases, and other routine 
administrative matters having authorized funding within the current fiscal year budget as a single decision. Items 
may be withdrawn from the consent agenda and discussed separately upon request by any member of the BOD 
or staff. Information for each consent agenda item and corresponding supporting document is within the packet.  
 

Recommended Motion 
“Motion to approve the consent agenda items for February 19, 2020.” 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Go To Item 6 
 

Go to Agenda 

Governing Board Meeting – February 19, 2020 
Agenda Item: # 5 
BOD#: 2020-02-04 

Agenda Item Title:   
Discussion of the 2020 Fire District Tax Abstract / Levy Limit Worksheet for Pinal and Maricopa counties, and its impact 
on the development of the Fiscal Year 2020 / 2021 Revenue Budget. 
 
Submitted By:    
Roger Wood, Finance Director 
Fire Chief Mike Farber 
 
Background/Discussion:  
The Combined Pinal County & Maricopa County Fire District Levy Limit Worksheet (Tax Abstract) for FY 2020 / 2021 was 
delivered on February 8.  A summary of the District’s Net Assessed Valuation (NAV) and its impact on the property tax 
revenues for FY 2020 / 2021 is as follows: 
 
           Pinal Maricopa       Total % Increase 
Centrally Assessed Property    10,620,728          26    10,620,754     4.32% 
Locally Assessed Property    31,238,962 142,419   31,381,381     2.32% 
Locally Assessed Personal Property 388,545,184 303,487 388,848,671     6.32% 
 Total    430,404,874 445,932 430,850,806     5.97% 
 
 
At the current tax rate of $3.25 per $100 of Net Assessed Value, the NAV increase results in an additional $788,893 in 
tax revenues for the General (100) Fund.   
 
At the current special assessment rate of $0.25 per $100 of NAV, the NAV increase results in an additional $60,684 in tax 
revenues for the Capital Replacement (200) Fund. 
 
At the current special assessment rate of $0.17 per $100 of NAV, the NAV increase results in an additional $42,034 in tax 
revenues for the Debt Principal (500) and Debt Interest (600) funds combined. 
 
The District Salt River Project (SRP) NAV is still not known. 
 
This information does not require Board action; it is being provided for FY 2020 / 2021 Budgeting purposes for the 
General (100), Capital Replacement (200), and the Debt Principal (500) and Debt Interest (600) funds. 
 
Enclosure:    
2020 Pinal County Fire District Levy Limit Worksheet (Tax Abstract) 
2020 Maricopa County Levy Limit Worksheet  
 
 
 

Recommended Motion 
N/A 

 









Go to Item 7 
 

Go to Agenda 

Governing Board Meeting – February 19, 2020 
Agenda Item: #6 
BOD#: 2020-02-05 
 
Agenda Item Title 
Presentation and discussion of the Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS) results information as of June 30, 
2019, an update of the District’s DROP participants and retired employees. 
 

Submitted By 
Finance Director Roger Wood 
Board Member Larry Strand 
 

Background/Discussion 

Per A.R.S. §38-847(D)(7), the Local Pension Board is “To receive and review the District’s actuarial valuation of 
the system for its group of members.”   This report will be presented at the May 12, 2020 Local Pension Board 
meeting.  In addition, the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the entire state of Arizona for the 
period ending June 30, 2019 will be presented.   
 
The intent of this presentation is to give the Governing Board a preview summary of the information to be presented 
at the May 12 Local Pension Board meeting. 
 
CAFR for all Arizona PSPRS employers 
Funded percentage as of June 30, 2019:  46.2% for Tier 1 and Tier 2 Employees’ Pension 

123.1% for Tier 3 Employees’ Pension 
 

GASB 68 Executive Summary for SFMD (All Tiers) 
Pension Plan Funded Liability as of June 30, 2019 63.58% 
 
SFMD’s PSPRS Actuarial Valuation from Foster & Foster 

• SFMD’s FY20/21 Employer (ER) PSPRS Contribution Rates 
o Tier 1 & Tier 2 Defined Benefit (DB) only:    31.84% 
o Tier 2 Hybrid (DB & Defined Contribution (DC) Supplement): 35.84% 
o Tier 3 DB only:       26.01%   
o Tier 3 DC only:       29.01% 
o Tier 3 Hybrid =        26.48% 

• These rates are 2.36 points higher than in FY 19/20 
 

As of February 19, 2020, SFMD has 15 retired employees, and 15 employees participating in the DROP 
program with the intent to retire within the next 5 years. 
 

 

Financial Impact(s)/Budget Line Item 
N/A – For informational purposes only 
 

Enclosure(s) 

1. PSPRS CAFR Highlights – 6.30.19  
2. SFMD GASB 68 Executive Summary – 6.30.19 
3. SFMD PSPRS Actuarial Valuation by Foster & Foster – 6.30.19 

Recommended Motion 
N/A 
 

 

































Go to Item 8 
 

Go to Agenda 

Governing Board Meeting – February 19, 2020 
Agenda Item: #7 
BOD#: 2020-02-06 
 
Agenda Item Title 
SFMD Policy Manual – Policies reviewed in January 2020. 
 
Submitted By 
Mike Farber, Fire Chief 
Anna Butel, Administrative Services Director 
 
Background/Discussion 
In the January 2020 Board of Directors meeting, the following policies were submitted for review:  
 
*Please note that because policy 701 Personnel Communication Devices received significant feedback from 
the membership, it was pulled, revised, and has been resubmitted for review in February and possible 
approval in March. Additionally, policy 1022 Physical Fitness had a minor change in paragraph six, where it 
indicates a spotter the words “as needed” were added. Due to many instances of weight lifting can be done 
without a spotter.  

• 402 – Fire Investigations 
• 409 – Youth Firesetter Referrals 
• 410 – Fire Watch Services 
• 703 – Use of District Vehicles 
• 704 – Information Technology Use 
• 707 – Communications Operations 
• 708 – Public Alerts 
• 709 – Photography and Electronic Imaging 
• 1022 - Physical Fitness  
• 1100 - Facility Security 

 
These are essential policies and are part of the comprehensive Lexipol/SFMD policy manual.  
 
Financial Impact(s)/Budget Line Item 
N/A 
 
 
 

Recommended Motion 
“Motion to approve policies: Fire Investigations, Youth Firesetter Referrals, Fire Watch Services, Use of 
District Vehicles, Information Technology Use, Communication Operations, Public Alerts, Photography and 
Electronic Imaging, Physical Fitness and Facility Security.“ 

 



Go to Item 9 
 

Go to Appendix G8 
 

Go to Agenda 

Governing Board Meeting – February 19, 2019 
Agenda Item: #8 
BOD#: 2020-02-07 
 
Agenda Item Title 
Policy Review – For possible approval in the March 2020 Board of Director Meeting.  
 
Submitted By 
Mike Farber, Fire Chief 
Anna Butel, Administrative Services Director 
 
Background/Discussion 
As you are aware, SFMD is currently creating a new policy manual through the implementation of Lexipol. 
After your review, we will be seeking approval in the August meeting. Although, these policies require board 
approval they will not go into effect until the completion of the policy manual. Ideally, we do not want to 
burden the board with a large manual that requires approval all at once, and we want to avoid membership 
confusion by having only manual.  
 
Enclosure(s) 
New Policies for Review:  (Go to Appendix G1 -G16) 

• 600 – Fire Apparatus Driver Operator Training 
• 601 – CPR and Automated External Defibrillator Training 
• 602 – Communicable Disease Training Program 
• 603 – Emergency Action Plan and Fire Prevention Plan Training 
• 604 – Hazard Communication Program Training 
• 605 – Hazardous Materials (HAZMAT) Training 
• 606 – Hearing Conservation and Noise Control Training 
• 607 – Heat Illness Prevention Training 
• 608 – Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) Training 
• 609 – National Incident Management System (NIMS) Training 
• 611 – Respiratory Protection Training 
• 612 – Wildland Fire Shelter Deployment Training 
• 613 – Training Records 
• 614 – Firefighter Health Safety and Survival Training 
• 1014 – Personnel Complaints 
• 1020 – Grievance Procedure 

Recommended Motion 
No motion at this time. 

 

  



Go to Item 10 
 

Go to Agenda 

Governing Board Meeting – February 19, 2020 
Agenda Item: #9 
BOD#: 2020-02-08 
 
Agenda Item Title 
Discussion and possible approval of Health Equity (H.S.A. provider) integration with Nationwide (457b vendor) 
program.  
 
Submitted By 
 
 
Background/Discussion 
Health Equity, who provides our health savings accounts for employees who are on a high deductible medical 
plans, has integrated with Nationwide, our 457(b) vendor to optimize every dollar saved.  Tax efficient 
contributions free up more dollars to invest.  Thoughtful investment strategy keeps fees low and helps assets 
grow.  Tax efficient distribution give employees more to spend in retirement.  Employees with a health savings 
accounts will be able to sign in to both Health Equity and Nationwide in one single log in. Health Equity 
retirement offers a solution that can help reduce the cost, risk and work of managing a retirement plan.  This 
integration solution can seamlessly integrate with Health Equity’s H.S.A. to better prepare individuals for 
retirement.   
 
In this new partnership with Health Equity and Nationwide, nothing would change with the current plan 
except Nationwide would enhance the underlying investment line-up by increasing the crediting rate on the 
cash/cash equivalent account and expanding the variable investment line-up to offer more funds/asset 
allocation categories. Also, participants could see their HSA account on the Nationwide retirement website 
dashboard along with their 457 plans as well. A one stop shop! 

Reduced Costs: Professional investment managers select high performance, low cost funds from Vanguard and 
purchase services in bulk, which allows Health Equity Retirement to reduce costs by as much as 60%.   
 
Lower Risk: They appoint professional fiduciaries to sign and act as Plan Administrator, Named Fiduciary and 
investment Manager.  This model mitigates the risk of administrative mistakes and correction, IRS and DOL 
audits and employee lawsuits. 
 
Less Work: They approve loans, track eligibility, manage audits and force-outs, as well as review, sing and file 
your form 5500.   
 
Financial Impact(s)/Budget Line Item 
N/A 
 
Enclosure(s) 
Overview flyer  
 

Recommended Motion 
“Motion to approve the Health Equity integration with Nationwide program” 
 

  



Overview

Nationwide HSA

Help participants  
save for health care 
costs in retirement
The Nationwide® HSA administered by HealthEquity® 

FOR ADVISOR USE WITH PLAN SPONSORS



of Americans consider health 
care costs one of their largest 
retirement concerns.1

73%

Drive retirement readiness by offering a solution 
for funding out-of-pocket health care costs

By adding the Nationwide HSA administered by HealthEquity, you can offer your 
employees a benefits package that combines two long-term savings needs into one 
seamless experience. And you get resources designed to:

Educate employees about how to plan for and benefit  
from the triple tax advantages of HSAs: contributions are 
pre-tax, investment growth is tax-deferred, and withdrawals 
are tax-free when used on qualifying medical expenses

Give employees an integrated view of their savings  
for retirement needs

Build confidence in planning for current and future  
medical bills

Nationwide’s health and wealth solution simplifies two of the most common employee 
benefits. The Nationwide HSA integrates into your retirement plan, reducing the 
separate administrative tasks of both. And, our HSA is carrier-neutral, so it can be 
coupled with most health plan providers.2

Nationwide believes saving for health care expenses down the road is a critical 
component of a successful retirement plan. By displaying HSA balance and other 
information with retirement plan account data, we hope to educate participants on 
the value of using HSAs to enhance their long-term, retirement savings strategy rather 
than to address short-term needs.

1  “Health Care and Long-Term Care Consumer Survey,” Nationwide Retirement Institute/The Harris Poll (2018). The fourth annual 
survey was conducted online within the United States from Feb. 5 – 22, 2018, among 1,007 adults ages 50 and older who have a 
household income of $150,000 or more (“affluent adults”), and 522 U.S. adults ages 50 and older who are or have been caregivers.

2 Employees must be covered by a high-deductible health plan to be eligible for an HSA.

This information is general in nature and is not intended to be tax, legal, accounting or other professional advice. The information 
provided is based on current laws, which are subject to change at any time, and has not been endorsed by any government agency.



Manage retirement and HSA 
accounts together online

Participants will see a new HSA link when  
they log in to their retirement plan account, 
allowing them to see balances in their 
retirement account and HSA. 

To learn more about the benefits of adding the Nationwide 
HSA administered by HealthEquity, call 1-800-626-3112.

Together with the wealth of tools and 
information that HealthEquity has on their 
online portal, participants will be able to better 
understand their needs and take steps toward 
retirement readiness.



HealthEquity Inc. is an IRS-authorized nonbank custodian of health savings accounts (HSAs). Nationwide and 
HealthEquity are separate and nonaffiliated companies.

Nationwide plan representatives are Registered Representatives of Nationwide Investment Services Corporation (NISC), 
member FINRA, Columbus, Ohio. Nationwide Retirement Institute® is a division of NISC. This material is for informational 
purposes only and should not be construed as investment, tax, or legal advice. Neither Nationwide nor its representatives 
give investment, legal or tax advice. Contact your advisor for these services.

Nationwide, the Nationwide N and Eagle, Nationwide is on your side and Nationwide Retirement Institute are service 
marks of Nationwide Mutual Insurance Company. Third-party marks that appear in this message are the property of their 
respective owners. © 2018 Nationwide 

FOR ADVISOR USE WITH PLAN SPONSORS

NFM-17779AO.1 (11/18)

Call  1-800-626-3112 

Visit nationwide.com/retirementplans



Go to Item 11 
 

Go to Agenda 

Governing Board Meeting – February 19, 2020 
Agenda Item: 10 
BOD#: 2020-02-09 
 
Agenda Item Title 
Reports 
 
Background / Discussion 
This item is for the fire chief and his staff to share information with the Board of items occurring within, or 
related to, the fire district. Any item shared is for information only. Upon request of the Board, any item shared 
during this agenda item may be moved to the agenda for future meetings. Board discussion, other than clarifying 
questions, cannot occur and no action, position, or direction may occur until the specific item is placed on the 
agenda. 
 
 Senior Leadership Team 
 Labor 

 
 
 

Recommended Motion: 
N/A 

 



Go to Item 12 
 

Go to Agenda 

Governing Board Meeting – February 19, 2020 
Agenda Item: 11 
BOD#: 2020-02-10 
 
Agenda Item Title 
New Business / Future Agenda Items 
 
Submitted By 
Board of Directors  
 
Background/Discussion 
This item is used as a placeholder to discuss New Business / Future Agenda Items, the Board may want on a 
future agenda. 
 
Financial Impact 
N/A 
 
Enclosure(s) 
N/A 
 

Recommended Motion: 
N/A 

 



Go to Item 13 
 

Go to Agenda 

Governing Board Meeting – February 19, 2020 
Agenda Item: 12 
BOD#: 2020-02-n/a 
 
Agenda Item Title 
Announcements 
 
Background / Discussion 
The BOD and staff may share and discuss items to be placed on future BOD agendas.  
 
 

Recommended Motion: 
N/A 

 
 

  



Go to Agenda 

Governing Board Meeting – February 19, 2020 
Agenda Item: 13 
BOD#: 2020-02-11 
 
Agenda Item Title 
Adjournment 
 

Recommended Motion: 
“Motion to adjourn the Board meeting.” 

 
 

 

 

   

 

  



 
 

Go to Agenda 

Appendix A 
 
A. Board Meeting Minutes from January 15, 2020 

 
Submitted By 
Board Secretary Sherry Mueller 
 
Background / Discussion 
The board meeting minutes of the previous meeting(s) are provided for the BOD to approve. If the BOD would 
like to discuss the minutes, they may be removed from the consent agenda. After approval, minutes are signed 
by the Clerk of the Board and kept as the official public record.  
 
Financial Impact/Budget Line Item 
N/A 
 
Enclosure(s) 
January 15, 2020 Board Meeting Minutes 
 



 

Superstition Fire & Medical District 
Phone  (480) 982-4440  ∼  sfmd.az.gov 

 Administration Office 
565 North Idaho Road 

Apache Junction, AZ 85119 
Fax   (480) 982-0183 

Regional Training Center 
3700 East 16th Avenue 

Apache Junction, AZ 85119 
Fax   (480) 982-3268 

Fleet & Facilities Services 
1455 East 18th Avenue 

Apache Junction, AZ 85119 
Fax   (480) 983-7443 

 

BOD Minutes January 15, 2020 Page 1 

Governing Board Meeting Minutes 
January 15, 2020 
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38.431.02, NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC THAT THE 
SUPERSTITION FIRE & MEDICAL DISTRICT GOVERNING BOARD OF DIRECTORS HELD A 
MEETING ON WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 15, 2020. THE MEETING WAS HELD AT THE SUPERSTITION 
FIRE & MEDICAL DISTRICT’S ADMINISTRATION OFFICE, 565 N. IDAHO ROAD, APACHE 
JUNCTION, ARIZONA. 
THIS MEETING WAS OPEN TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC AND BEGAN AT 5:30 PM. 

 
A. Call to Order 

Chairman House called the meeting to order at 5:30 PM. 
 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 
The Pledge of Allegiance led by Director Moeller. 
 

C. Roll Call 
Board Members in attendance were Chairman Todd House, Clerk Kathleen Chamberlain, Director Larry 
Strand, Director Jeff Cross and Director Jason Moeller. 
Senior Leadership Team in attendance were Fire Chief Mike Farber, Assistant Chief Richard Mooney, 
Assistant Chief Rick Ochs, Finance Director Roger Wood, Deputy Chief Jeff Cranmer and Administrative 
Services Director Anna Butel. 
Legal Counsel William Whittington attended by phone and Board Secretary and HR Generalist Sherry 
Mueller attended. 
 

1. Review and approval of the December 2019 financial reports and bank reconciliations. (BOD #2020-01-
01) 
 
Motion by Director Moeller to approve the December 2019 financial reports and bank reconciliations. 
Seconded by Director Cross. 
 
Vote 5 ayes, 0 nays, MOTION PASSED.   
 

2. Recognition of employee performance, achievements, and special recognition for community members. 
(BOD #2020-01-02) 

 

SFMD Early Organizational History – Captain Bill Taylor  

 

 

 

 



 

Superstition Fire & Medical District 
Phone  (480) 982-4440  ∼  sfmd.az.gov 

 Administration Office 
565 North Idaho Road 

Apache Junction, AZ 85119 
Fax   (480) 982-0183 

Regional Training Center 
3700 East 16th Avenue 

Apache Junction, AZ 85119 
Fax   (480) 982-3268 

Fleet & Facilities Services 
1455 East 18th Avenue 

Apache Junction, AZ 85119 
Fax   (480) 983-7443 

 

BOD Minutes January 15, 2020 Page 2 

 

January Service Anniversaries 

31 Years: Engineer John Christensen 

19 Years: Captain / Paramedic – Rob Bessee 

17 Years: Engineer / Paramedic – Chuck Hanson 

 3 Years: Firefighter / Paramedic – Brian Dover 

 
3. Call to the Public. (BOD #2020-01-N/A) 

None. 
 

4. Consideration and possible approval of all consent agenda items listed below (BOD #2020-01-03): 

A. Board Meeting Minutes from December 18, 2019  
B. Executive Session Minutes from December 18, 2019  

 
Motion by Director Strand to approve all consent agenda items for January 15, 2020. 
Seconded by Director Cross. 
 
Vote 5 ayes, 0 nays, MOTION PASSED. 
 

5. Discussion, presentation, and possible approval for the SFMD’s Financial Statements and Independent 
Auditor’s Report for Fiscal year ending June 30, 2019.  As required by Arizona Revised Statutes §48-
253, submitted by Henry & Horne, LLP.  (BOD #2020-01-04) 

 
Finance Director Roger Wood introduced Aaron Funk from Henry & Horne Auditing Firm.  Mr. Funk stated 
this year’s audit has a clean opinion that was recorded for the District.   There were no findings or significant 
deficiencies found.  There were no difficulties or misstatements encountered with management.   

 
Motion by Director Moeller to approve the Fire District’s Auditor’s Report and related Financial Statements 
for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2018 and ending on June 30, 2019, as submitted by Aaron Funk, CPA, 
and to direct Staff to submit the auditor’s report to Pinal County and Maricopa County as required by 
ARS§48-253. 
Seconded by Director Cross. 
 
Vote 5 ayes, 0 nays, MOTION PASSED. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Superstition Fire & Medical District 
Phone  (480) 982-4440  ∼  sfmd.az.gov 

 Administration Office 
565 North Idaho Road 

Apache Junction, AZ 85119 
Fax   (480) 982-0183 

Regional Training Center 
3700 East 16th Avenue 

Apache Junction, AZ 85119 
Fax   (480) 982-3268 

Fleet & Facilities Services 
1455 East 18th Avenue 

Apache Junction, AZ 85119 
Fax   (480) 983-7443 

 

BOD Minutes January 15, 2020 Page 3 

6. Discussion and possible action regarding the approval and adoption of a planning calendar and process 
for Fiscal Year 2020/2021 SFMD Revenue and Expenditure Budget.  (BOD #2020-01-05) 

 
Fire Chief Mike Farber stated this item is for our annual planning budget process.  Finance Director Roger 
Wood gave a brief update providing an overview of when important dates will impact the Board.  The dates 
align with regular Board Meetings that are scheduled between now and July 2020.  At each one of the Board 
Meetings, more information on the budget will be provided and issues will be discussed.  The tentative budget 
will be presented for review and approval at the June 17, 2020 Board Meeting.  It will then go out to the 
public for a minimum of a 20-day review and comment period.  We will formally adopt the new budget (if 
everyone is in agreement) at the July 15, 2020 Board Meeting.  The calendar is to provide an overview of 
dates that will impact the Board.  There will be a subsequent, much more detailed calendar that Budget 
Managers will work on with Senior Leadership to stay on track and meet requirements. 

 
Motion by Director Cross to adopt the Fiscal Year 2020/2021 Budget Planning Calendar as presented, and to 
schedule the July Governing Board Meeting for Wednesday, July 15, 2020 at 5:30 pm when the Fiscal Year 
2020/2021 budget will be adopted.   
Seconded by Director Strand. 
 
Vote 5 ayes, 0 nays, MOTION PASSED. 
 

7. Discussion and possible approval of Board’s direction on the hiring (procurement) of an external 
consulting firm to facilitate the search for the next fire chief for the District. 
(BOD #2020-01-06) 
  
Finance Director Roger Wood provided a tentative planning timeline tool for the search for the next fire chief.  
The Ad-Hoc Committee decided the Board of Directors should provide direction to the committee as to 
whether they want a “Sole Source” consulting firm that the District would use for the fire chief search or have 
a competitive bid for the process.  The Board Members agreed that they prefer a competitive bid process for 
the search for the next fire chief. 
 
Motion by Director Moeller to require Competitive Written Bids for the procurement of Professional Services 
related to the search for the new fire chief. 
Seconded by Director Strand. 
 
Vote 5 ayes, 0 nays, MOTION PASSED. 

  
8. Discussion and possible action regarding the apparatus purchase of a Pierce Fire Engine. (BOD #2020-

01-07) 
MOTION by Clerk Chamberlain to approve the purchase of a new Pierce Velocity Pumper through 
Hughes Fire Equipment for a total price not to exceed $724,518.00.  The Board is authorizing the Fire Chief 
and the Finance Director to sign the purchase order and the Hughes/Pierce purchase agreement.  The motion 
includes the authority to review, revise, approve and sign the purchase agreement and ancillary documents by 
the Chairman, the Clerk, the Chief and the Finance Director.  
Seconded by Director Cross. 



 

Superstition Fire & Medical District 
Phone  (480) 982-4440  ∼  sfmd.az.gov 

 Administration Office 
565 North Idaho Road 

Apache Junction, AZ 85119 
Fax   (480) 982-0183 

Regional Training Center 
3700 East 16th Avenue 

Apache Junction, AZ 85119 
Fax   (480) 982-3268 

Fleet & Facilities Services 
1455 East 18th Avenue 

Apache Junction, AZ 85119 
Fax   (480) 983-7443 

 

BOD Minutes January 15, 2020 Page 4 

 
Vote 5 ayes, 0 nays, MOTION PASSED. 
 
9. Discussion, presentation and possible approval of the following Policies brought for review at the 

December 18, 2019 Board Meeting for final approval at the January 15, 2020 Board Meeting.  
(BOD #2020-01-08) 

 
• 500 Patient Care Reports 
• 503 Pre-Hospital Medical Care Directives 
• 505 Controlled Substance Accountability  
• 705 Mobile Data Terminal Use 
• 706 – Knox Box and Other Access Box Systems – Revised 
• 710 Non-Official Use of District Property 

MOTION by Director Cross to approve policies: Patient Care Reports, Pre-Hospital Medical Care Directives, 
Controlled Substance Accountability, Mobile Data Terminal Use, Knox Box and Other Access Box Systems 
and Non-Official Use of District Property.   

Seconded by Director Strand. 
 
Vote 5 ayes, 0 nays, MOTION PASSED. 

10. Discussion and presentation of the following Policies brought for review at the January 15, 2020 
Board Meeting for final approval at the February 19, 2020 Board Meeting.  (BOD #2020-01-09) 
 
• 402 – Fire Investigations 
• 409 – Youth Fire Setter Referrals 
• 410 – Fire Watch Services 
• 701 – Personal Communication Devices 
• 703 – Use of District Vehicles 
• 704 – Information Technology Use 
• 707 – Communications Operations 
• 708 – Public Alerts 
• 709 – Photography and Electronic Imaging 
• 1022 - Physical Fitness  
• 1100 - Facility Security 
 
No Motion 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Superstition Fire & Medical District 
Phone  (480) 982-4440  ∼  sfmd.az.gov 

 Administration Office 
565 North Idaho Road 

Apache Junction, AZ 85119 
Fax   (480) 982-0183 

Regional Training Center 
3700 East 16th Avenue 

Apache Junction, AZ 85119 
Fax   (480) 982-3268 

Fleet & Facilities Services 
1455 East 18th Avenue 

Apache Junction, AZ 85119 
Fax   (480) 983-7443 

 

BOD Minutes January 15, 2020 Page 5 

11. Reports (BOD #2020-01-10)   

Senior Leadership Team (SLT): 
Fire Chief Mike Farber 
• AFDA Winter Conference January 16th – 18th, 2020 
• Neighborhood Meetings: 
 Superstition Mobile Village 
 Mountain View Mobile Ranch 
 Weaver’s Needle 

• Bid Process – New Bid Assignments 
 

Assistant Chief of Operations Richard Mooney 
• Business Inspection Training 
• Image Trend Elite Inspection Module 
• 2019 Ambulance Transports 
• 2019 Company Responses 
Incidents: 
• Structure Fire, December 26th at 300 W. Apache Trail 
• Structure Fire, January 13th at 105 N. Delaware 
 
Deputy Chief Jeff Cranmer 
Training: 
• Regional Air Bag Ops 
• TRT, MCS 
• ISO Conference 
• Health and Wellness Training 
• Forcible Entry Training 
 
Assistant Chief of Planning & Logistics Richard Ochs 
• Concrete Repairs at Station 263 
• Mold Testing at Station 261 – Negative findings 
Growth & Development: 
• Super Star Car Wash – Ironwood & Baseline 
• Mountain America Credit Union 
• Gold Canyon Golf Carts 
• Remodels: Montessa, Mountain Brook and AJ City Court 
 
Administrative Services Director Anna Butel 
• Lexipol Policies update 
 7 Lexipol Policies to complete 
 20 SFMD Policies that may need to merge into Lexipol 

 
 Finance Director Roger Wood 
• Gilbert Fire – Transport accounting discussion (Billy Warren) 



 

Superstition Fire & Medical District 
Phone  (480) 982-4440  ∼  sfmd.az.gov 

 Administration Office 
565 North Idaho Road 

Apache Junction, AZ 85119 
Fax   (480) 982-0183 

Regional Training Center 
3700 East 16th Avenue 

Apache Junction, AZ 85119 
Fax   (480) 982-3268 

Fleet & Facilities Services 
1455 East 18th Avenue 

Apache Junction, AZ 85119 
Fax   (480) 983-7443 

 

BOD Minutes January 15, 2020 Page 6 

• Building budget files, communicating budget calendar and expectations to budget managers 
• Starting annual Worker’s Comp audit 
• Payroll working on W2’s for distribution by January 31st 

 
12. Possible vote to go into Executive Session pursuant to ARS §38-431.03(A)(1) for personnel matters 

regarding the fire chief’s performance evaluation and ARS §38-431.03(A)(3) for legal advice. (BOD 
#2020-01-11) 

a)  Confirmation that the fire chief has received at least 24 hours advanced notice of this proposed executive 
session for the fire chief to determine whether the performance evaluation should occur during the public 
session. 

b)  Note that executive sessions are confidential pursuant to ARS §38-431.03(C) 

MOTION by Director Cross to go into Executive Session pursuant to ARS §38-431.03(A)(1) and possible 
legal advice pursuant to ARS §38-431.03(A)(3) at 6:44 p.m. regarding the fire chief’s performance evaluation” 

Seconded by Director Strand. 
 
Vote 5 ayes, 0 nays, MOTION PASSED. 

13. Discussion and possible action regarding the Executive Session for the Fire Chief evaluation. (BOD 
#2020-01-12) 
 
The public session resumed at 8:16 P.M.  Chairman House stated he thinks Chief Farber is doing a really 
good job, working well with Labor and has great goals for the future.  Director Moeller stated he thinks 
Chief Farber is doing an exceptional job.  He’s taken the reins and shown good leadership.  There are 
some areas that could be improved upon.  Director Strand told Chief Farber to remember the “Golden 
Rule” (do unto others….).  Director Cross said he appreciates Chief Farber taking over the reins and 
Chief is doing a good job.  There are areas that could be improved.  Director Cross likes Chief Farber’s 
attitude.  Clerk Chamberlain stated she thinks there have been many accomplishments that have come 
from Chief’s administration.  She likes some of the things we are looking at for future goals.  Chief 
Farber thanks the Board Members and thanked his Staff for everything we’ve accomplished as a team. 

No Motion. 
 

14. New Business / Future Agenda Items. (BOD #2020-01-13) 
Clerk Chamberlain would like a Pension Board update at the next Board Meeting.  Finance Director 
Roger Wood will bring an update from the Annual Report in February, 2020. 
 

15. Announcements (BOD #2020-01-N/A) 
 
 
 
 



 

Superstition Fire & Medical District 
Phone  (480) 982-4440  ∼  sfmd.az.gov 

 Administration Office 
565 North Idaho Road 

Apache Junction, AZ 85119 
Fax   (480) 982-0183 

Regional Training Center 
3700 East 16th Avenue 

Apache Junction, AZ 85119 
Fax   (480) 982-3268 

Fleet & Facilities Services 
1455 East 18th Avenue 

Apache Junction, AZ 85119 
Fax   (480) 983-7443 

 

BOD Minutes January 15, 2020 Page 7 

16. Adjourn (BOD #2020-01-14) 
Motion by Director Cross at 8:24 P.M. to adjourn the meeting   
Seconded by Director Strand. 

 
Vote 5 ayes, 0 nays. MOTION PASSED. 

 
 
 
 Governing Board Approval: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Board Clerk Kathleen Chamberlain 
Sherry Mueller 



 
 

Go to Agenda 

Appendix C 
 

C. Renewal of contract for property and casualty insurance service 
 
Submitted By:  
Fire Chief Mike Farber 
Finance Director Roger Wood 
 
Background / Discussion:  
Cindy Elbert Insurance Services is our current broker for our ESIP insurance property damage and liability 
policies.  The quote we received from Cindy Elbert Insurance Services for the period March 1, 2020 – February 
28, 2021 is $159,637, an increase of $18,692.  The increase is due to the following:   
 
   Last Year This Year Change Coverage 
A. Auto & Property: $108,823 $124,767 +15,944 Vehicle, Buildings, contents  
B. Inland Marine:     20,138     21,860 +  1,722  Portable equipment 
C. Umbrella Liability:     11,984     13,010 +  1,026  Umbrella, General, Professional  

$140,945 $159,637 $18,692 
 
The increase in Auto & Property and Inland Marine (A & B above) is caused by the following: 
 

A. The value of the buildings insured increased $1,240,520 (5.6%), and the value of vehicles insured 
increased $827,246 (8.0%).  $738,400 of the increase is due to the addition of C95 the 2019 Pierce 
Velocity Pumper and related equipment. 

B. Considering the $2.07 million increase in assets insured, the actual cost per dollar of insured assets 
increased 7.48% year-over-year. 

C. The increase in Umbrella Liability insurance (C above) is due to the increased number of calls the District 
responds to, and the fact that the District now responds to ambulance transport calls.   
 

Additional Items for Consideration. 
1. Terrorism Coverage. 

a. Annual premium = $2,608. 
b. The Terrorism Risk Insurance Act of 2002 requires insurance companies to offer terrorism 

coverage.   
c. The District can deny this coverage. 

 
Financial Impact/Budget Line Item: 
$18,692 additional cost 
Accounts 100-10-61700-10 and 150-10-61700-10 (Vehicle / Property / Liability Insurance) 
 
Staff Recommendation:  
Staff recommends the approval of the ESIP insurance for property and vehicle damage, and liability.  Staff also 
recommends the Board reject the Optional Terrorism coverage. 
 
Enclosure(s):  
Cindy Elbert Insurance Services Premium Quote 
 







 
 

Go to Agenda 

Appendix D 
 

D. Arizona Department of Forestry and Fire Management Cooperative Fire Rate Scheedule 
 
 
Submitted By 
Captain Mark Gomez 
Battalion Chief Brian White 
Fire Chief Mike Farber 
Finance Director Roger Wood 
 
Background/Discussion 
Every two years, the District and the Arizona Department of Forestry & Fire Management enter into a 
Cooperative fire Rate Schedule to establish the rates that the District will rent out its equipment while on 
Wildland fires.  The renewal of the rate schedule is due April 1, 2020. 
 
The fully loaded labor rate schedule for firefighters and transport employees who respond on Wildland fires 
supplements the rental rates in the attached equipment rate schedule. 
 
Financial Impact(s)/Budget Line Item 
N/A – depends on level of requested and accepted responses to wildland fires. 
 
Enclosure(s) 
Arizona Department of Forestry Fire Rate Schedule 
 
 
 

















 
 

Go to Agenda 

Appendix E 
 

E. Contract Renewal with PhoenixNAP Data Center and Colocation 
 
Submitted By 
Anna Butel, Administrative Services Director 
Lauren Daniel, Information Systems Coordinator 
 
 
Background / Discussion 
SFMD utilizes PhoenixNAP for offsite server hosting and storage. They provide a secure facility with ideal 
server storage conditions, as well as multiple redundancies for maximum uptime.  
 
This contract is a renewal of existing services with no pricing increase for a 2-year term starting on March 1, 
2020, and ending February 28, 2022. 
 
 
Financial Impact/Budget Line Item 
 

Account Number Account Name Amount 
100-10-60630-08 System Server Hosting (100 Fund) $264.33 
150-10-60630-08 System Server Hosting (150 Fund) $132.17 

Monthly Lease Price $396.50 
 
 
Enclosure(s) 
Contract (for board signature) 
 



AAAAACUPUAK7 AAAAACUPUAK7

AAAAACUPUAK7 AAAAACUPUAK7

Cover Page for Faxing Documents to your DocuSign Envelope

1. Write the number of pages on the line below.
2. Fax the document and cover page to the appropriate number below:

U.S. and Canada: +1 800 480 7090, +1 206 734 3212
London: +44 330 808 0031
Singapore: +65 3158 7626
Australia: +61 280 155 732

From: Clifton McKay

Envelope Subject: Superstition Fire & Medical District: PhoenixNAP Service Order Form

Attachments to Fax:

Envelope ID: 7f76ab6c-ef83-4f63-bb6b-63b6314975b0

Sender Account Name: Phoenix NAP, LLC

Number of Pages:
(Including cover page) ____________

DocuSign Customer Support: https://support.docusign.com

Note:
Fax transmissions take approximately one minute per page faxed.
This page may only be used once. If you would like to fax again, you must print a new cover page.



Phoenix NAP Order Form 

©2018, All Rights Reserved. PhoenixNAP v.4, 12172015 CONFIDENTIAL 1 

Phoenix NAP, LLC 

3402 E UNIVERSITY DR. 
PHOENIX, AZ 85034 

Company Name:  

Client Billing Information: Technical Contact 1 Information: 

Phone: 1.877.749.2656 Address:  Name: 

Fax: 1.480.449.8801 City, State, ZIP:  Email: 

Phoenix NAP Representative: 
Country:  Phone: 

Contact:  Technical Contact 2 Information: 

Email:  Name: 

Email:  Phone:  Email: 

Phone:  Other: Phone: 

Agreement Type: MSA SLA Type: 

Version Referenced:  Account Number:  

Agreement URL: https://phoenixnap.com/cs/legal/ Hardware Service Type: 

The Initial Term of this Service Order and the billing for services ordered starts on the Service Commencement Date indicated on Page 3 after provisioned. 

The services ordered are provided pursuant to the Master Service Agreement (MSA) between PhoenixNAP and the Client. Terms not defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in that document. 
There are significant Terms and Conditions, Warranty Disclaimers, and Liability Limitations contained in the referenced document. All relevant and referenced documents are located at 
https://phoenixnap.com/cs/legal/. 

DO NOT SIGN THIS SERVICE ORDER BEFORE YOU HAVE READ ALL OF THE PROVISIONS OF THE REFERENCED DOCUMENT(s). Your signature on Page 2 indicates that you have read the document and its 
Addendums or Attachments (as applicable) and agree to be bound by the provisions contained within. 

Neither party will be bound by this Service Order until it has been signed by an Authorized Representative of such party. 

Acceptance by PhoenixNAP, LLC is subject to payment in full to PhoenixNAP, LLC of any Non-Recurring Charges (NRC) and one month’s Monthly Recurring Charges (MRC) as set forth in the Service Order 
and due upon execution of the agreement. 

All MRC for Colocation (COLO) Services are subject to a                % annual increase, applied on each one-year anniversary of the Service Order Commencement Date identified below. 

Move, Add, Change, Disconnect (MACD) orders: The term and billing of the services ordered starts on the Commencement Date (indicated on page 2 AFTER order provisioned) and continues for the term 
specified. Pre-payment may be required prior to provisioning.  

PhoenixNAP /Provisioning / Commencement Date 

You will receive an email notifying you of the Service Ready Date. The Commencement Date no more than ten (10) calendar days from the Service Ready Date or date Client moves into the facility 
space and commences using services, whichever date occurs first. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7F76AB6C-EF83-4F63-BB6B-63B6314975B0

14804010279

Merilee Dominguez

Merilee@phoenixnap.com

0

v.3; 04122016

Superstition Fire & Medical District

cmckay@pniaz.com

565 North Idaho Road

Apache Junction, Arizona, 85119

+1.480.982.4440

9283

Clifton McKay

United States

https://phoenixnap.com/cs/legal/


Phoenix NAP Order Form 

©2018, All Rights Reserved. PhoenixNAP v.4, 12172015 CONFIDENTIAL 2 

PNAP Authorized Signature Printed Title Date 

 

Client Authorized Signature Printed Title Date 

    

Client Physical Address City State ZIP 

PhoenixNAP Internal Use – SE/QC: \i1\ 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7F76AB6C-EF83-4F63-BB6B-63B6314975B0

565 North Idaho Road ArizonaApache Junction 85119

John Hardie



Phoenix NAP Order Form 

©2018, All Rights Reserved. PhoenixNAP CONFIDENTIAL 3 

 

 

Order Issue Date: 1/29/2020 Order Form Expires if Not Signed By: 2/7/2020 

Order Type: Renew (Client Requested) Service Ready Date: 3/1/2020 

 

Pre-Payment Prior to Service Delivery:   

 

 

 

 

 

NOTES 

Company Name: Superstition Fire & Medical District Order Tracking No.  ORD-07008-G8P3S1 

Bandwidth Overage (if applicable): $10/mbps Power Configuration (if applicable):  

Datacenter Location (if applicable): Phoenix 3402 East University Dr., Phoenix, AZ 85034 Contract Type (applicable to HaaS products only):  

Product Name and Description Product Family QTY Monthly Lease Price Per Each TOTAL Monthly Lease Price One Time Charge Per Each TOTAL One Time Charge 

PROMO CAB Bundle - 1/4 Cab - 10U 

Locking, 1PDU, 1x 120V 20A, Primary 

Only (2.4kVA), 20mbps Blended 

Bandwidth (Overages $10/mbps), 1 

Copper Cross Connect, /29 IP Block 

 

COLO-BUN-

R01P1111 
1.00 $299.00 $299.00  $0.00 

Blended Bandwidth - Burstable - 

Monthly Mbps commitment (95th 

percentile) 

 

BANDWIDTH-

B001101 
30.00 $3.25 $97.50 $0.00 $0.00 

 Subtotals: $396.50  $0.00 

 Totals (All Discounts Included): $396.50  $0.00 

Contract Term (Months): 24 

Contract Co-termination Date:  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7F76AB6C-EF83-4F63-BB6B-63B6314975B0



Phoenix NAP Order Form 

©2018, All Rights Reserved. PhoenixNAP CONFIDENTIAL 4 

 

Phoenix NAP makes every effort to comply with Technical and Order Detail requests listed in the notes below. Phoenix NAP expressly denies any liability for errors or omissions that may occur.  

You can distinguish Colocation (COLO) Services and Hardware as a Service (HaaS) products by referring to the Product Family column in the product listing above. Any annual increase in Monthly 
Recurring Charges (MRC) defined on Page 1 of this contract is applicable to COLO Services only.  

Renewal of existing services only, no physical changes. 
 
1/4 CAB PROMO with 20mbps of bandwidth included 
Additional 30mbps at $3.25/mbps 
 
Total bandwidth commit: 50mbps 
Overages at $10/mbps 
 
Renewal effective on 03/01/20 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7F76AB6C-EF83-4F63-BB6B-63B6314975B0



 
 

Go to Agenda 

Appendix F 
 

F. Purchase of two (2) LifePac 15 Heart Monitors. 
 
Submitted By 
Battalion Chief Amy Brooks 
 
Background / Discussion 
Two (2) LifePac 15V4 Heart Monitors were included for purchase in the Capital (200) Fund budget for FY 19/20. 
All necessary accessories are included in this purchase proposal.   
 
Stryker Medical (who purchased Physio Control) is the sole source distributer for the LifePac monitors within 
Arizona.  This is noted on the attached Procurement Form. 
 
Stryker is providing a $6,000 discount ($3,000 each) for the two (2) LifePak 12 monitors being traded in, which, 
according to Accounting asset records, were purchased in 1998. 
 
 
Financial Impact/Budget Line Item 
Total Cost (both monitors) 
$84,924.43 / 200-70-73420-41 (EMS Capital Medical Equipment) 
 
Enclosure(s) 

1. Stryker Quote #10133205 dated 2/11/2020 
2. SFMD Procurement Form 
3. Purchase Order #018347 

 













 
 

Go to Agenda 

Appendix G 
 
G.  Policies for review and approval in March 2020 

 
Submitted By 
Mike Farber, Fire Chief 
Anna Butel, Administrative Services Director 
 
Background/Discussion 
As you are aware, SFMD is currently creating a new policy manual through the implementation of Lexipol. 
After your review, we will be seeking approval in the August meeting. Although, these policies require board 
approval they will not go into effect until the completion of the policy manual. Ideally, we do not want to 
burden the board with a large manual that requires approval all at once, and we want to avoid membership 
confusion by having only manual.  
 
Enclosure(s) 
New Policies for Review 



Policy

600
Superstition Fire & Medical District

Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Fire Apparatus Driver/Operator Training - 1

Fire Apparatus Driver/Operator Training
600.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
Best Practice

The purpose of this policy is to enhance the safety of members and the public by ensuring that all
Superstition Fire & Medical District members, including tiller operators, who operate authorized
emergency vehicles as part of their duties, receive appropriate training.

600.1.1   DEFINITIONS
State

Definitions related to this policy include:

Authorized emergency vehicle - Any of the following vehicles (ARS § 28-101(4)):

(a) A fire department vehicle

(b) A police vehicle

(c) An ambulance or emergency vehicle of a municipal department or public service
corporation that is designated or authorized by the District or a local authority

(d) Any other ambulance, fire truck or rescue vehicle that is authorized by the District in
its sole discretion and that meets liability insurance requirements prescribed by
the District

Tiller operator - The driver of the rear free-axle portion of a ladder truck.

600.2   POLICY
Best Practice

It is the policy of the Superstition Fire & Medical District that all members who operate firefighting
apparatus, including tiller operators, shall successfully complete driver training that meets or
exceeds the requirements of National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) 1002 or a recognized
driver/operator training program.

Training should include written, oral and practical evaluations to demonstrate proficiency. The
Training Officer shall annually audit and update driver/operator training materials to ensure
compliance with local, state and federal requirements.

600.3   PROCEDURES
Best Practice

All members who operate firefighting apparatus, including tiller operators, should have certification
and training validating competent operational and driving skills consistent with NFPA 1002 or the
International Fire Service Accreditation Congress (IFSAC) driver/operator certification standards.

600.4   TRAINING OFFICER RESPONSIBILITIES
Best Practice



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

Fire Apparatus Driver/Operator Training

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Fire Apparatus Driver/Operator Training - 2

It shall be the responsibility of the Training Officer to ensure that any member required to drive
fire apparatus as a part of his/her normal duties has received all training required for competent,
safe operation of the apparatus. The Training Officer shall coordinate with the district member
appointed to monitor driver license status to ensure members have valid driver licenses, in
accordance with the Driver License Requirements Policy.



Policy

601
Superstition Fire & Medical District

Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** CPR and Automated External Defibrillator
Training - 1

CPR and Automated External Defibrillator
Training
601.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
Best Practice

The purpose of this policy is to establish the training requirements for members to maintain the
current and valid certificate that is required to perform CPR and to utilize an Automated External
Defibrillator (AED).

601.1.1   DEFINITIONS
State

Definitions related to this policy include:

Automated External Defibrillator (AED) - An external defibrillator capable of cardiac rhythm
analysis and that will charge, with or without further operator action, and deliver a shock after
electronically detecting and assessing ventricular fibrillation or rapid ventricular tachycardia (ARS
§ 36-2261).

Qualified instructor - An individual who is qualified to teach AED/CPR techniques for adults,
pediatric patients, and infants consistent with the American Heart Association recommendations.

601.2   POLICY
Best Practice

It is the policy of the Superstition Fire & Medical District that all members whose duties include the
use of an AED or the performance of CPR shall receive initial and recertification training to maintain
the current and valid certificate that is required to utilize such equipment and/or skills. Initial
training and recertification will consist of courses consistent with the American Heart Association
recommendations and will be provided by qualified instructors at the health care provider level.

601.3   REQUIREMENTS
Best Practice

CPR and AED training should include:

• Proper use, maintenance and periodic inspection of the AED.

• The importance of CPR, defibrillation, Advanced Life Support (ALS), adequate airway
care and internal emergency response system, if applicable.

• Assessment of an unconscious patient to include evaluation of the airway, breathing
and circulation to determine cardiac arrest.

• The administration of CPR, obstructed airway and other health care provider CPR
curriculum skills.

• Information relating to AED safety precautions to enable the administration of a shock
without jeopardizing the safety of the patient, rescuers or other nearby persons.



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

CPR and Automated External Defibrillator Training

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** CPR and Automated External Defibrillator
Training - 2

• Recognition that an electrical shock has been delivered to the patient and that the
defibrillator is no longer charged.

• Rapid, accurate assessment of the patient’s post-shock status.

• The appropriate continuation of care following a successful defibrillation.

In order to be authorized to perform CPR and utilize the defibrillator, an individual shall pass a
written and skills examination with a pre-established standard. The skills test measures the ability
to evaluate and manage the conditions listed above.

601.4   TRAINING RECORDS
Best Practice

The Training Officer shall be responsible for maintaining records of all CPR and AED training
provided to members. Records should include, but are not limited to:

(a) The dates of the training sessions.

(b) A list of the topics or a summary of the content of the training sessions.

(c) The names or other identifiers and job titles of the members who received the training.

(d) The names, certificate numbers and qualifications of the persons conducting the
training.

The Training Officer should maintain the training records in accordance with established records
retention schedules.

601.5   REPORTING
Best Practice

The EMS supervisor shall be responsible for collecting and recording AED use data from district-
approved Patient Care Reports (PCRs). Those PCRs shall be maintained as required by the
administrative medical director and shall be available for inspection by the Bureau of Emergency
Medical Services & Trauma Systems (AZ BEMS). It will be necessary to establish procedures for
the collection, maintenance and evaluation of patient medical records in order to report annually
to the AZ BEMS on the total number of patients defibrillated and appropriate patient follow-up
data, as required.



Policy

602
Superstition Fire & Medical District

Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Communicable Disease Training Program - 1

Communicable Disease Training Program
602.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
Best Practice

The purpose of this policy is to establish a training program to ensure members have the skills
and knowledge to protect themselves against communicable diseases.

602.2   POLICY
Best Practice

It is the policy of the Superstition Fire & Medical District to make members’ health and safety a
priority by providing initial and recurring communicable disease training.

602.3   TRAINING REQUIREMENTS
State

The Health and Safety Officer, working with the Training Officer, shall be responsible for:

(a) Developing and implementing a training program on the Communicable Diseases
Policy and an exposure control plan.

(b) Remaining current on all legal requirements concerning communicable disease
training mandates and reasonable training goals.

(c) Maintaining an up-to-date list of personnel requiring training.

(d) Maintaining class rosters and quizzes and periodically reviewing and updating the
training program.

(e) Ensuring that the training mandates set forth in 29 CFR 1910.1030 are included in the
training program and are met by all members (AAC § R20-5-602).

602.4   MEMBER TRAINING
State

Any member whose duties place him/her at risk for exposure to communicable disease shall
receive district-provided, no-cost training during working hours.

602.5   TRAINING RECORDS
Best Practice

The Training Officer shall be responsible for maintaining records of all communicable disease
training provided to members. Records should include, but are not limited to:

(a) The dates of the training sessions.

(b) A list of the topics or a summary of the content of the training sessions.

(c) The names or other identifiers and job titles of the members who received the training.

(d) The names, certificate numbers and qualifications of persons conducting the training.



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

Communicable Disease Training Program

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Communicable Disease Training Program - 2

The Training Officer should maintain the training records in accordance with established records
retention schedules.



Policy

603
Superstition Fire & Medical District

Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Emergency Action Plan and Fire Prevention
Plan Training - 1

Emergency Action Plan and Fire Prevention Plan
Training
603.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
State

The purpose of this policy is to establish training in support of the Superstition Fire & Medical
District Emergency Action Plan (EAP) and Fire Prevention Plan (FPP) in a manner consistent
with state regulations for all Superstition Fire & Medical District facilities (29 CFR 1910.38(e); 29
CFR 1910.39(d); AAC § R20-5-602).

603.2   POLICY
State

It is the policy of the Superstition Fire & Medical District to provide training to all members regarding
the EAP and FPP.

603.3   TRAINING OFFICER RESPONSIBILITIES
Best Practice

The Training Officer shall be responsible for developing and scheduling the district’s EAP and
FPP training. The Training Officer shall maintain records of all EAP and FPP training provided to
members. Records should include, but are not limited to:

(a) The dates of the training sessions.

(b) A list of the topics or a summary of the content of the training sessions.

(c) The names or other identifiers and job titles of the members who received the training.

(d) The names, certificate numbers and qualifications of persons conducting the training.

The Training Officer should maintain the training records in accordance with established records
retention schedules.



Policy

604
Superstition Fire & Medical District

Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Hazard Communication Program Training - 1

Hazard Communication Program Training
604.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
State

The purpose of this policy is to establish the required training regarding the district’s hazard
communication program. This policy identifies who must receive training, training content
requirements, when additional or supplemental training is required and what record keeping is
necessary to comply with state law (29 CFR 1910.1200; AAC § R20-5-602).

604.1.1   DEFINITIONS
State

Definitions related to this policy include (29 CFR 1910.1200; AAC § R20-5-602):

Hazardous chemical - Any chemical that is classified as a physical hazard, health hazard, simple
asphyxiant, combustible dust, pyrophoric gas or hazard not otherwise classified.

Health hazard - A chemical that is classified as posing one of the following hazardous effects:
acute toxicity (any route of exposure), skin corrosion or irritation, serious eye damage or eye
irritation, respiratory or skin sensitization, germ cell mutagenicity, carcinogenicity, reproductive
toxicity, specific target organ toxicity (single or repeated exposure), or aspiration hazard.

604.2   POLICY
State

It is the policy of the Superstition Fire & Medical District, in accordance with the Hazard
Communication Policy, to provide members with effective information and training on hazardous
chemicals in their work area at the time of their initial assignment and whenever a new hazard
is introduced.

604.3   TRAINING REQUIREMENTS
State

The initial hazard communication program training shall include, but is not limited to, the following
topics (29 CFR 1910.1200; AAC § R20-5-602):

(a) Members shall be informed of any operations in their work area where hazardous
chemicals are present.

(b) Members shall be informed of the location and availability of information regarding any
hazardous chemicals and Safety Data Sheets (SDS), as required by the state.

(c) Members shall be trained in the methods and observations that may be used to detect
the presence or release of a hazardous chemical in the work area.

(d) Members shall be trained in the physical and health hazards of the chemicals in the
work area and the measures they can take to protect themselves, including specific
procedures the District has implemented to protect them from exposure to hazardous



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

Hazard Communication Program Training

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Hazard Communication Program Training - 2

chemicals. These include appropriate work practices, emergency procedures and
personal protective equipment (PPE).

(e) Members shall be provided with an explanation of the labeling system and the SDS,
and how they can obtain and use the appropriate hazard information.



Policy

605
Superstition Fire & Medical District

Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Hazardous Materials (HAZMAT) Training - 1

Hazardous Materials (HAZMAT) Training
605.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
State

The purpose of this policy is to establish training that will meet state requirements regarding the
Superstition Fire & Medical District Hazardous Materials (HAZMAT) response program. This policy
identifies the level of training members must receive, when additional or supplemental training is
required and the training records required to meet the requirements of 29 CFR 1910.120 (AAC
§ R20-5-602).

605.2   POLICY
State

It is the policy of the Superstition Fire & Medical District that any member whose duties include a
role in the HAZMAT response program shall receive training to the level at which they are expected
to operate in a HAZMAT environment or at an incident involving hazardous materials.

605.3   TRAINING REQUIREMENTS
State

HAZMAT training shall be based on the duties and functions to be performed by each member.
This includes training specific to the Incident Commander (IC), awareness or operations level, and
HAZMAT technician or specialist (29 CFR 1910.120(q)(6); AAC § R20-5-602).

Competencies required for all new members shall be conveyed to them through training before
participating on an incident. Any member who participates or is expected to participate in
an emergency response involving HAZMAT shall objectively demonstrate competency in the
following areas.

605.3.1   FIRST RESPONDER AWARENESS
State

First responder awareness level training should be provided to all individuals who are likely to
witness or discover a hazardous substance release and who have been trained to initiate an
emergency response sequence by notifying the proper authorities of the release. A member with
this level of training should demonstrate competency in the understanding and recognition of a
hazardous substance release (29 CFR 1910.120(q)(6); AAC § R20-5-602).

605.3.2   HAZMAT FIRST RESPONDER OPERATIONS (FRO)
State

First responder operations (FRO) level training should be provided for individuals who respond
to releases or potential releases of hazardous substances as part of the initial response to the
site for the purpose of protecting nearby persons, property or the environment from the effects
of the release. A member with this level of training is trained to respond in a defensive fashion
without actually trying to stop the release. This member’s function is to contain the release from



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

Hazardous Materials (HAZMAT) Training

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Hazardous Materials (HAZMAT) Training - 2

a safe distance, keep it from spreading and prevent exposures (29 CFR 1910.120(q)(6); AAC §
R20-5-602).

605.3.3   HAZMAT TECHNICIAN
State

HAZMAT technician level training should be provided to all individuals who respond to releases
or potential releases of hazardous substances for the purpose of stopping the release. A member
with this level of training would assume a more aggressive role by approaching the point of
release in order to plug, patch or otherwise stop the release of a hazardous substance (29 CFR
1910.120(q)(6); AAC § R20-5-602).

605.3.4   HAZMAT SPECIALIST
State

HAZMAT specialist level training should be provided to all individuals who respond with, and
provide support to, HAZMAT technicians. A member with this level of training has a more direct
or specific knowledge of the various hazardous substances requiring containment. A HAZMAT
specialist may also act as a site liaison to government authorities regarding site activities (29 CFR
1910.120(q)(6); AAC § R20-5-602).

605.3.5   HAZMAT INCIDENT COMMANDER
State

HAZMAT IC level training should be provided to all individuals who could be responsible for all
decisions relating to the management of a HAZMAT incident (29 CFR 1910.120(q)(6); AAC §
R20-5-602).

605.3.6   HAZMAT EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN
State

An emergency response plan shall be developed and implemented to address pre-emergency
planning and coordination with additional responders prior to the commencement of emergency
response operations. The plan will identify members’ roles, lines of authority and communications
for all members. The plan shall be in writing and available for inspection and copying by
employees, their representatives and Arizona Division of Occupational Safety and Health
(ADOSH) personnel.

605.3.7   HAZMAT ANNUAL REFRESHER TRAINING
State

Members who receive an initial level of training in accordance with this policy shall receive annual
refresher training of sufficient and necessary content and duration to maintain their competencies,
or shall demonstrate competency in those areas at least yearly (29 CFR 1910.120(q)(8); AAC §
R20-5-602).

605.4   BASELINE PHYSICAL FOR HAZMAT TEAM MEMBERS
State



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

Hazardous Materials (HAZMAT) Training

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Hazardous Materials (HAZMAT) Training - 3

Members of an organized, designated HAZMAT team and HAZMAT specialists shall receive
a baseline physical examination. The federal Occupational Safety and Health Administration
(OSHA) requires that medical examinations and consultations be made available to members of
HAZMAT teams within prescribed time periods. All members of a designated HAZMAT team shall
receive medical examinations and consultations on the following schedules (29 CFR 1910.120(q)
(9); AAC § R20-5-602):

(a) Prior to assignment

(b) At least once every 12 months

(c) At termination of employment or reassignment to duties not covered by this policy

(d) As soon as possible upon notification that the employee has developed signs
or symptoms indicating possible overexposure to hazardous substances or health
hazards

(e) As soon as possible upon notification that the employee has been injured or exposed
above the permissible exposure limits or published exposure levels in an emergency
situation

The frequency of a member’s examinations may be increased if the examining physician
determines that it is medically necessary. Medical examinations should include medical and work
history. Emphasis should be placed on any symptoms related to the handling of, or exposure
to, hazardous substances or health hazards. Medical examinations should address fitness for
duty, especially as it pertains to wearing personal protective equipment under conditions that may
be encountered on-duty. The content of medical examinations should be made available to the
member as determined by the attending physician.

605.4.1   HAZMAT MEDICAL SURVEILLANCE
State

Members of an organized and designated HAZMAT team and HAZMAT specialists shall receive
a baseline physical examination and be provided with medical surveillance (29 CFR 1910.120(q)
(9); AAC § R20-5-602).

Any emergency response member who exhibits signs or symptoms which may have resulted from
exposure to hazardous substances during the course of an emergency incident, either immediately
or subsequently, shall be provided with medical consultation (29 CFR 1910.120(q)(9); AAC §
R20-5-602).

Accurate records of the medical surveillance required by this policy shall be retained for the
duration of the member’s employment plus 30 years. This record shall contain at a minimum the
following information (29 CFR 1910.120(q)(9); AAC § R20-5-602):

(a) The name and Social Security number of the member.

(b) The physician’s written opinions, recommended limitations and results of
examinations and tests.



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

Hazardous Materials (HAZMAT) Training

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Hazardous Materials (HAZMAT) Training - 4

(c) Any member medical complaints related to exposure to hazardous substances.

(d) A copy of the information provided to the physician by the District, with the exception
of district policies and OSHA standards.

605.5   TRAINING RECORDS
State

The Training Officer shall be responsible for maintaining records of all HAZMAT training provided
to members. Records should include, but are not limited to:

(a) Dates of the training sessions.

(b) A list of the topics or a summary of the content of the training sessions.

1. Specific content required by regulation covered

2. Manufacturer’s recommendations (as applicable)

3. Manufacturer’s operations/service/maintenance manuals (as applicable)

(c) The names or other identifiers and job titles of all members who received the training.

(d) The names, certificate numbers and qualifications of persons conducting the training.

(e) Demonstration that learning took place (e.g., evaluation, quiz, test).

The Training Officer should maintain the training records in accordance with established records
retention schedules.



Policy

606
Superstition Fire & Medical District

Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Hearing Conservation and Noise Control
Training - 1

Hearing Conservation and Noise Control
Training
606.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
State

The purpose of this policy is to establish and maintain hearing conservation and noise control
training for members exposed to noise above levels predetermined by Arizona law and federal
regulation (29 CFR 1910.95; AAC § R20-5-602).

606.2   POLICY
State

It is the policy of the Superstition Fire & Medical District to promote member health and safety by
establishing hearing conservation and noise control training and requiring member participation.
The hearing conservation program shall include parameters for permissible noise exposure limits,
monitoring guidelines, audiometric testing procedures, hearing protection equipment and training,
and documentation of the district’s efforts in compliance with state and federal requirements.

606.3   RESPONSIBILITIES
State

The following procedures shall comprise the hearing conservation and noise control training for
the Superstition Fire & Medical District. The Training Officer shall be responsible for ensuring that
the appropriate members are enrolled in the training. Captains shall be responsible for ensuring
that members attend scheduled testing and training.

606.3.1   NOISE EXPOSURE LIMITS
State

The Superstition Fire & Medical District shall ensure that each member is provided with protection
against the effects of noise exposure any time the sound levels exceed those shown in 29 CFR
1910.95, App. A.

606.3.2   HEARING PROTECTORS
State

If control measures fail to reduce sound levels to an acceptable level for the amount of exposure,
the District shall provide personal protective equipment to all members subject to the noise
exposure and require that it be used. Employees shall have the opportunity to select hearing
protectors from a variety provided by the District 29 CFR 1910.95, App. B.

The District shall ensure proper initial fit and correct use of hearing protectors and shall provide
training in the use and care of the equipment.

606.3.3   MONITORING
State



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

Hearing Conservation and Noise Control Training

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Hearing Conservation and Noise Control
Training - 2

The Superstition Fire & Medical District shall monitor noise levels in the workplace by either area
monitoring or personal monitoring that is representative of a member’s exposure, to enable the
proper selection of hearing protectors 29 CFR 1910.95, App. G.

606.3.4   AUDIOMETRIC TESTING PROGRAM
State  MODIFIED

The Superstition Fire & Medical District shall provide audiometric testing and evaluation to all
members who are exposed to noise levels in excess of those permissible pursuant to 29 CFR
1910.95, App. C and App. D. The District shall provide baseline audiometric testing annually.

Each member’s annual audiogram shall be compared to that member’s baseline audiogram to
determine if the audiogram is valid and if a standard threshold shift has occurred.

All audiometric testing shall be conducted by properly trained audiometric professionals in
compliance with state testing requirements.

606.4   TRAINING RECORDS
Best Practice  MODIFIED

The Training Officer shall be responsible for maintaining records of all hearing conservation
program training provided to members. Records should include, but are not limited to:

(a) The dates of the training sessions.

(b) A list of topics or a summary of the content of the training sessions.

(c) The names or other identifiers and job titles of the members who received the training.

(d) The names, certificate numbers and qualifications of persons conducting the training.

The Training Officer shall maintain the training records in accordance with established records
retention schedules.



Policy

607
Superstition Fire & Medical District

Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Heat Illness Prevention Training - 1

Heat Illness Prevention Training
607.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
Best Practice

The purpose of this policy is to establish and maintain a training program that complies
with Superstition Fire & Medical District policy for the prevention of heat illness in members who are
exposed to high-heat conditions. This policy identifies which members must receive training, the
required curriculum, supervisory training and responsibilities, and training record documentation.

607.1.1   DEFINITIONS
Best Practice

Definitions related to this policy include:

Acclimatization - The temporary adaptation of the body to work in the heat. Acclimatization peaks
in most people within four to 14 days of working at least two hours per day in the heat.

Heat-related illness - A serious medical condition resulting from the body’s inability to cope with a
particular heat load and includes, but is not limited to, heat cramps, heat exhaustion, heat syncope
(temporary loss of consciousness usually related to insufficient blood flow to the brain) and heat
stroke.

607.2   POLICY
Best Practice

It is the policy of the Superstition Fire & Medical District to promote member health and safety
by establishing a heat illness prevention training program and requiring member participation. In
addition to the safety precautions described in the Heat Illness Prevention Program Policy, the
District shall ensure that effective training is provided to members before the member begins work
that should reasonably be anticipated to result in heat illness.

607.3   TRAINING REQUIREMENTS
Best Practice

Training shall be provided to all members whose duties may include exposure to high-heat
conditions and shall include:

(a) The environmental and personal risk factors for heat illness.

(b) The district's procedures for complying with the Heat Illness Prevention Program
Policy for the prevention of heat illness.

(c) The importance of frequent consumption of small quantities of water and electrolyte
replacement fluid, up to four cups per hour, when the work environment is hot and
members are likely to be sweating more than usual in the performance of their duties.

(d) The importance of acclimatization.

(e) The different types of heat illness and the common signs and symptoms of heat illness.



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

Heat Illness Prevention Training

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Heat Illness Prevention Training - 2

(f) The importance of members immediately reporting to a supervisor, directly or through
others, symptoms or signs of heat illness in themselves or in coworkers.

(g) The district's procedures for responding to symptoms of possible heat illness, including
how Emergency Medical Services (EMS) will be provided if necessary.

(h) The district's procedures for contacting EMS and, if necessary, for transporting
members to a place where they can be reached by an EMS provider.

(i) The district's procedures for ensuring that, in the event of an emergency, clear and
precise directions to the work site can and will be provided to other emergency
responders.

607.4   SUPERVISOR TRAINING REQUIREMENTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES
Best Practice

Supervisors shall be provided additional training on the following topics prior to supervising
members who will be working in the heat:

(a) The procedures to follow to implement the applicable provisions in this policy

(b) The procedures to follow when a member exhibits symptoms consistent with possible
heat illness, including emergency response procedures

(c) The procedures for moving or transporting a member to a rendezvous location
accessible to an EMS provider, if necessary



Policy

608
Superstition Fire & Medical District

Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Health Insurance Portability and Accountability
Act (HIPAA) Training - 1

Health Insurance Portability and Accountability
Act (HIPAA) Training
608.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
Federal

The purpose of this policy is to ensure all members receive proper training in recognizing and
handling protected health information (PHI), as set forth in the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act (HIPAA) and its implementing regulations (42 USC § 201; 45 CFR 164.530).

608.1.1   DEFINITIONS
Federal

Definitions related to this policy include (45 CFR 160.103):

Health information - Information, whether oral or recorded in any form or medium, that is created
or received by a health care provider, health plan or employer and relates to a person’s past,
present or future physical or mental health or condition, or past, present or future payment for the
provision of health care.

Individually identifiable health information - Health information, including demographic
information, created or received by a covered entity or employer that relates to an individual’s
past, present or future physical or mental health or condition, the provision of health care to an
individual, or the past, present or future payment for the provision of health care to an individual,
that can either identify the individual or provide a reasonable basis to believe the information can
be used to identify the individual.

Protected health information (PHI) - Individually identifiable health information that is created
or received by a covered entity or employer. Information is protected whether it is in writing, in an
electronic medium or communicated orally.

608.2   POLICY
Federal

It is the policy of the Superstition Fire & Medical District to provide HIPAA privacy training to
all members as necessary and appropriate for their duties, and to apply appropriate sanctions
against members who violate the privacy policies and procedures (45 CFR 164.530(b); 45 CFR
164.530(e)).

It is also the policy of the District that no member shall be retaliated or discriminated against for
filing a complaint about violations of HIPAA regulations (45 CFR 164.530(g)).

608.3   TRAINING REQUIREMENTS
Federal

To ensure confidentiality and compliance with the HIPAA regulations, the District shall provide
training to all members likely to have access to PHI. The training shall be completed for all newly



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) Training

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Health Insurance Portability and Accountability
Act (HIPAA) Training - 2

hired members prior to being allowed access to PHI. Training for all current members shall also
occur any time material changes are made to the district’s privacy policies and procedures.

The Training Officer shall be responsible for establishing a periodic schedule for retraining and
a method of ensuring that all members acknowledge receipt of all HIPAA training (45 CFR
164.530(b)).

Training should include a review of the:

(a) District’s statutory obligations imposed by HIPAA.

(b) Patient Medical Record Security and Privacy Policy, including a thorough treatment
of the security procedures the District uses to protect written and electronic health
information.

(c) Methods and procedures to be used during the collection of PHI.

(d) HIPAA-imposed statutory limitations on the dissemination of PHI to the family
members of patients.

(e) Proper procedures when responding to media requests for information regarding
incidents at which the District provided medical services.

(f) Procedures for the secure destruction of written instruments containing PHI, including
handwritten field notes, Patient Care Reports or other documents containing PHI.

(g) Approved method for transferring PHI to receiving hospitals or other receiving medical
facilities.

(h) Photography and Electronic Imaging Policy as it pertains to PHI.

(i) District’s procedures for protecting employee health information.

608.4   TRAINING RECORDS
Federal

The Training Department shall be responsible for maintaining the records of all HIPAA-related
training for all members for six years (45 CFR 164.530(j)).



Policy

609
Superstition Fire & Medical District

Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** National Incident Management System (NIMS)
Training - 1

National Incident Management System (NIMS)
Training
609.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
Federal

The purpose of this policy is to establish the training requirements for members to successfully
operate under the Incident Command System (ICS) and the National Incident Management
System (NIMS).

609.2   POLICY
Federal

It is the policy of the Superstition Fire & Medical District to utilize NIMS/ICS in order to effectively
manage personnel and resources when responding to a wide range of emergency incidents. All
Superstition Fire & Medical District members whose job duties may include a role in emergency
management or incident response shall be appropriately trained to the NIMS standards to improve
all-hazards capabilities nationwide.

609.3   PROCEDURE
Federal  MODIFIED

All district personnel with job duties that include a direct role in emergency management or incident
response must complete the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) NIMS IS-700
course.

Additional training is available on an as-needed basis, depending on the regional role of the District
or the role of a member within the District as follows:

(a) Entry Level:

1. FEMA IS-700: NIMS, An Introduction

2. ICS-100: Introduction to ICS or equivalent

(b) First Line, Single Resource, Captains, and Field Supervisors:

1. IS-700.A, ICS-100 and ICS-200: Basic ICS or its equivalent

(c) Middle Management: Battalion Chiefs, Strike Team Leaders, Division Supervisors,
Emergency Operations Center Staff:

1. IS-700.A, IS-800.B NRF, ICS-100, ICS-200 and ICS-300

(d) Command Staff and General Staff, Area Emergency and EOC Managers:

1. IS-700.A, IS-800.B NRF, ICS-100, ICS-200, ICS-300 and ICS-400

Refresher training will be offered on a regular basis to ensure that NIMS/ICS knowledge
and skills are maintained, especially for personnel who are not regularly involved in complex



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

National Incident Management System (NIMS) Training

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** National Incident Management System (NIMS)
Training - 2

multijurisdictional incidents nationwide (i.e., incidents that require responders to hold credentials
under the National Emergency Responder Credentialing System).

609.4   TRAINING RECORDS
Best Practice

The Training Officer shall be responsible for maintaining records of all NIMS training provided to
members. Records should include, but are not limited to:

(a) The dates of the training sessions.

(b) A list of the topics or a summary of the content of the training sessions.

(c) The names or other identifiers and job titles of the members who received the training.

(d) The names, certificate numbers and qualifications of persons conducting the training.

The Training Officer should maintain the training records in accordance with established records
retention schedules.



Policy

611
Superstition Fire & Medical District

Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Respiratory Protection Training - 1

Respiratory Protection Training
611.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
State

The purpose of this policy is to protect the health of members through appropriate training on
the use of respirators to avoid breathing air that is contaminated with harmful dusts, fogs, fumes,
mists, gases, smokes, sprays and vapors.

This policy identifies which members must receive respiratory protection training, the minimum
training curriculum and the requirements for recurrent training (29 CFR 1910.134; AAC §
R20-5-602).

611.1.1   DEFINITIONS
State

Definitions related to this policy include:

Respirator or respiratory protection - Personal protective equipment (PPE) designed to protect
the wearer from airborne contaminants, oxygen deficiency or both.

611.2   POLICY
State

It is the policy of the Superstition Fire & Medical District to protect the health of members by
providing respiratory protection training.

611.3   TRAINING REQUIREMENTS
State

611.3.1   IDENTIFICATION OF MEMBERS TO BE TRAINED
State

The District shall provide effective respiratory protection training to all members who are required
or expected to utilize respirators.

Members shall be trained, based on their duties, if they (29 CFR 1910.134; AAC § R20-5-602):

(a) Use respirators.

(b) Supervise respirator users.

(c) Issue, repair or adjust respirators.

611.3.2   MANNER OF TRAINING
State

The District will present effective training using qualified instructors. Training may be provided
using audiovisuals, slide presentations, formal classroom discussion, informal discussions during
safety meetings, training programs conducted by outside sources or a combination of these
methods.



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

Respiratory Protection Training

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Respiratory Protection Training - 2

Instructors should be available to provide responses to questions, evaluate the
participants' understanding of the material and provide other instructional interaction.

Respirators used in training shall be cleaned and disinfected after each use (29 CFR 1910.134;
AAC § R20-5-602).

611.3.3   FREQUENCY OF TRAINING
State

The District will provide respiratory protection training:

(a) Initially, before work site respirator use begins.

(b) Periodically but within 12 months of the previous training.

(c) Additionally, when the following occurs:

1. The member has not retained knowledge or skills.

2. Changes in the work site or type of respirator make previous training incomplete
or obsolete.

After completing initial training, each member shall practice, at least quarterly, for each type and
manufacturer of respiratory equipment that is available for use, the step-by-step procedure for
donning the respirator and checking it for proper function (29 CFR 1910.134; AAC § R20-5-602).

611.3.4   CONTENTS OF TRAINING
State

Members shall receive training for each type and manufacturer of respiratory equipment that
is available for their use, including the step-by-step procedure for donning the respirator and
checking it for proper function. Required training shall include (29 CFR 1910.134; AAC §
R20-5-602):

(a) Recognizing hazards that may be encountered.

(b) Understanding the components of the respirator.

(c) Understanding the safety features and limitations of the respirator.

(d) Donning and doffing the respirator.

Members shall be thoroughly trained in accordance with the manufacturer’s instructions on
emergency procedures, such as the use of the regulator bypass valve, corrective action to
take for facepiece and breathing tube damage, and breathing directly from the regulator (where
applicable).

611.3.5   SUCCESSFUL COMPLETION
Best Practice

In order to successfully complete training, members must be able to demonstrate the following
knowledge and skills, as required by their duties:



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

Respiratory Protection Training

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Respiratory Protection Training - 3

(a) Why the respirator is necessary, including identifying respiratory hazards, such as
hazardous chemicals, the extent of the members’ exposure and potential health effects
and symptoms.

(b) The respirator’s capabilities and limitations, including how the respirator provides
protection and why air-purifying respirators cannot be used in oxygen-deficient
conditions.

(c) How improper fit, use or maintenance can compromise the respirator’s effectiveness
and reliability.

(d) How to properly inspect, put on, seal check, use and remove the respirator.

(e) How to clean, disinfect, repair and store the respirator.

(f) How to use the respirator effectively in emergency situations, including what to do
when a respirator fails and where emergency respirators are stored.

(g) Medical signs and symptoms that may limit or prevent the effective use of respirators.

611.4   TRAINING RECORDS
State

The Training Officer shall be responsible for maintaining records of all respiratory protection
training that is provided to members (29 CFR 1910.134; AAC § R20-5-602). At a minimum, the
District should document:

(a) The dates of the training sessions.

(b) A list of the topics or a summary of the content of the training sessions.

(c) The names or other identifiers and job titles of the members who received the training.

(d) The names, certificate numbers and qualifications of persons conducting the training.

(e) Documentation of each member’s demonstrated performance in meeting the
standards detailed in this policy.

The Training Officer should maintain the training records in accordance with established records
retention schedules.



Policy

612
Superstition Fire & Medical District

Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Wildland Fire Shelter Deployment Training - 1

Wildland Fire Shelter Deployment Training
612.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
Best Practice

The purpose of this policy is to ensure members who may participate in wildland firefighting, who
perform in-field investigations of wildland fires or who provide in-field support services to wildland
firefighting operations have thorough and recurrent training on the quick and effective deployment
of a wildland fire shelter.

612.2   POLICY
Best Practice

It is the policy of the Superstition Fire & Medical District to provide initial and recurrent wildland fire
shelter deployment training to all district members who may be exposed to wildland fire conditions.

The highest priority for a firefighter in wildland fire conditions is to stay out of situations that can lead
to entrapment. A fire shelter does not guarantee safety. It is a last resort in emergency conditions
when there are no other options.

612.3   PROCEDURE
Best Practice

The Training Officer shall be responsible for scheduling wildland fire shelter deployment training
annually, prior to the anticipated beginning of the main wildland fire season. All new members
shall receive wildland fire shelter deployment training prior to being assigned to field operations.

Annual fire shelter deployment training shall include, but is not limited to:

(a) A review of the National Wildfire Coordinating Group (NWCG) pamphlet entitled
National Fire Equipment System (NFES) #2710 “The New Generation Fire Shelter.”

(b) Either instructor-based fire shelter orientation or viewing of the NWCG Fire Shelter
Training video NFES #2711 or #2712.

(c) Performance of practice fire shelter deployment using NWCG-recommended tasks
and scenarios that include:

1. Standard fire shelter deployment, including clearing a 4-foot by 8-foot site in
preparation for deploying the shelter.

2. Proper use of fire shelter shake handles. Members should practice locating and
grasping the shake handles correctly to ensure that the shelter opens quickly,
allowing the user to get inside the shelter quickly.

3. Deployment of the shelter while lying on the ground, including practical exercises
in deploying the shelter from the ground.



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

Wildland Fire Shelter Deployment Training

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Wildland Fire Shelter Deployment Training - 2

4. Practical exercise of discarding extra gear and removing the shelter while
escaping and utilizing the partially unfolded shelter as a heat shield while
escaping.

5. Practical exercise of deploying the fire shelter in a strong wind (utilizing natural
or machine-created wind).

6. Practical exercise of lying inside the shelter for a prolonged time.

Fire shelter deployment training should not be conducted in a live fire situation.

612.4   TRAINING RECORDS
Best Practice

The Training Officer shall be responsible for maintaining records of all wildland fire shelter
deployment training that is provided to members. Training documentation should include:

(a) The dates of the training sessions.

(b) A list of topics or a summary of the content of the training sessions.

(c) The names or other identifiers and job titles of the members who received the training.

(d) The names, certificate numbers and qualifications of persons conducting the training.

(e) Documentation of each member’s demonstrated performance in meeting the
standards detailed in this policy.

The Training Officer should maintain training records in accordance with established records
retention schedules.



Policy

613
Superstition Fire & Medical District

Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Training Records - 1

Training Records
613.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
Best Practice

The purpose of this policy is to establish procedures for accumulating and maintaining records of
all training provided by the District and all training received by individual district members. This
policy shall apply to all training received but particularly training that is mandated by an external
force such as a law, statue or regulation.

613.2   POLICY
Best Practice

It is the policy of the Superstition Fire & Medical District to maintain comprehensive records of all
training provided by the District and all training received by district members. The Training Officer
or the authorized designee shall be responsible for creating and maintaining training records. All
members of the District are responsible for assisting the Training Department in documenting
training activities by signing course rosters, submitting certificates of completion from outside
training or providing other means of training documentation.

Training records may be documented utilizing either hard copies stored in a traditional filing
system or via electronic files. All electronic training records will be redundantly stored using district-
approved secure electronic file storage systems.

613.3   MASTER TRAINING CALENDAR
Best Practice

The Training Department will create and maintain an annual master training calendar for
the District. This calendar will document all district-provided, regularly scheduled training
opportunities. The master training calendar should be a living document, reflecting any changes
made in the actual training schedule or actual training opportunities provided throughout the year.
The training opportunities in the master training calendar should include, but are not limited to:

(a) All federal or state mandated training. Examples include courses that address sexual
harassment prevention, medical records privacy, personal protective equipment,
bloodborne pathogens, CPR and hearing protection.

(b) All federal or state mandated training drills, manipulative drills, skills or equipment
testing, including annual audiograms and fit testing for Occupational Safety and Health
Administration/National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health (OSHA/NIOSH)-
approved masks and respirators.

(c) All Arizona Center for Fire Service Excellence and other training provided by the
District.



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

Training Records

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Training Records - 2

(d) Specific training and certification for “all-hazards” positions, based on the Incident
Command System (ICS), the National Incident Management System (NIMS) or other
NIMS-compliant incident management system.

(e) All NIMS, ICS and NIMS-compliant incident management system courses.

(f) All Emergency Medical Services (EMS) pre-hospital care, continuing education
courses or programs provided by the District.

(g) Any training opportunity scheduled through the Training Department and intended to
be provided division-wide to each of the Divisions.

(h) Any training opportunity utilizing instruction from outside the District.

(i) Any interagency cooperative training program or activity.

(j) Any regularly scheduled skills, drills or job performance training and testing evolutions.

Copies of each year’s master training calendar will be maintained and retained in the Training
Department files based on district-established records retention schedules.

613.4   DIVISION TRAINING RECORDS
Best Practice  MODIFIED

The Training Officer shall be responsible for maintaining records of all training provided by all
Divisions of the District. All Divisions are required to submit documentation for each training
session offered. The information in each record shall include, but is not limited to:

(a) The course title.

(b) An outline of the subject matter and specific details of any information mandated by
federal or state code, Arizona Division of Occupational Safety and Health regulation
or other requirement.

(c) The dates the course was provided to members.

(d) The instructor names, qualifications and/or certifications.

(e) Copies of course curriculum, course duration, information sheets or other course
content provided to students.

(f) Attendance records for each course session, including each member’s name or other
identifier.

613.5   INDIVIDUAL TRAINING RECORDS
Best Practice

The Training Department will create and maintain an individual training file for each member
of the District. The training files will be kept separate from the district’s personnel files. The
member training files should be used to document a member’s training courses and training-
related programs and activities.



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

Training Records

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Training Records - 3

The training files shall not be used to store any work-performance records, member conduct
records, member disciplinary records or any other documentation that is not specifically training-
related. Information entered into the member training files will be a permanent part of that record.
No training information or entries will be removed from the file unless the record is found to be
factually incorrect or erroneously entered into that member’s training file. Each member’s training
file will be part of that member’s permanent record of activity while employed by the District.

When a member ends employment with the District, that member’s training file will be archived
and maintained in accordance with the district’s established records retention schedule.

Members of the District shall be provided access to their individual training file upon request.
A member may request to review his/her training file either verbally or in writing. The Training
Department should facilitate those requests as soon as practicable but in all cases within 21
days of the member’s request to review his/her file. Members may not remove any document or
information from the training file without the express approval of the Training Officer. Members
may not add any documents or entries to their training file without the approval of the Training
Officer or other approved member of the Training Department staff. Members shall be allowed to
photocopy or otherwise reproduce images of any entries in their individual training file.

Member training files should be organized to readily allow for the retrieval of specific training
subject documentation, particularly in regard to documentation of any mandated training subject
compliance.

Member training files should contain documentation of all work- or job-related licensing and
certification that the member earns, achieves or is awarded. Information regarding member
progress toward or application for licensing and certification should also be stored in the member
training files. Examples include National Wildfire Coordinating Group (NWCG) coursework,
NWCG position task books and certifications, NIMS certifications, ICS certifications, Arizona
Center for Fire Service Excellence certifications, International Fire Service Accreditation Congress
certifications, and Arizona Bureau of Emergency Medical Services & Trauma System pre-hospital
care provider continuing education coursework, licensing and certification records (Emergency
Medical Care Technician).

613.6   TRAINING RECORDS FROM PREVIOUS EMPLOYERS
Best Practice

Members of the District may submit training records from previous employers to the Training
Department for inclusion in their individual training file. The Training Department staff will evaluate
any submitted training records obtained during previous employment and will add any pertinent
information to the member’s training file as appropriate. New members should submit to the
Training Department copies of any licenses, certifications and coursework that are pertinent to
their position with the Superstition Fire & Medical District.

The Training Department staff may request that new members obtain and submit copies of any
previous employer training files for inclusion in their Superstition Fire & Medical District training file.



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

Training Records

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Training Records - 4

613.7   RELEASE OF FORMER MEMBER TRAINING RECORDS
Best Practice

Upon written request, the individual training file of any former Superstition Fire & Medical District
member may be copied and released to either the former member or to a third party upon receipt
of a signed written request from the former member of the District. The written request should
include the past member’s full name, approximate dates of employment with the District and date
of separation from employment with the District. In the event that the former member is requesting
that copies of his/her file be sent directly to a third party, the written request should include a
statement authorizing the Superstition Fire & Medical District to release copies to the named third
party.



Policy

614
Superstition Fire & Medical District

Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Firefighter Health, Safety and Survival Training
- 1

Firefighter Health, Safety and Survival Training
614.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
Best Practice

The purpose of this policy is to encourage a culture of safety first in an effort to
increase firefighter health, safety and survival, and reduce the number of preventable injuries and
deaths.

614.2   POLICY
Best Practice

The Superstition Fire & Medical District is committed to providing leadership, accountability and
training regarding firefighter health, safety and survival.

614.3   MEMBER RESPONSIBILITIES
Best Practice

Members are responsible for participating in health, safety and survival training required
by the District. Members are also responsible for their own actions and are expected to
follow Superstition Fire & Medical District safety standards, practices and training.

Any member who observes another member engaging in unsafe behavior should report the
behavior to his/her supervisor as soon as reasonably practicable.

614.4   SUPERVISOR RESPONSIBILITIES
Best Practice

Captains are responsible for ensuring members attend required health, safety and survival
training.

All supervisors are expected to model safe behaviors and take appropriate action when unsafe
behaviors are observed or reported.

614.5   TRAINING OFFICER RESPONSIBILITIES
Best Practice

The Training Officer is responsible for identifying health, safety and survival training required by
the District.

Required training may include safety-related courses of the National Fallen Firefighters
Foundation (NFFF), National Fire Academy, International Association of Fire Chiefs, International
Association of Firefighters or other nationally recognized fire service organizations.

Required training should include the Courage to Be Safe® course of the NFFF for all members and
should include the Leadership So Everyone Goes Home® course of the NFFF for all supervisors.



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

Firefighter Health, Safety and Survival Training

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Firefighter Health, Safety and Survival Training
- 2

614.6   TRAINING RECORDS
Best Practice

The Training Officer is responsible for maintaining records of health, safety and survival training
received by members. Records should include, but are not limited to:

(a) The dates of the training sessions.

(b) A list of the topics or a summary of the content of the training sessions.

(c) The names or other identifiers and job titles of the members who received the training.

(d) The names, certificate numbers and qualifications of persons conducting the training.

The Training Officer should maintain the training records in accordance with established records
retention schedules.



Policy

1014
Superstition Fire & Medical District

Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Personnel Complaints - 1

Personnel Complaints
1014.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
Best Practice

This policy provides guidelines for reporting, investigation and disposition of complaints regarding
the conduct of members of this district and the service provided by this district. This policy shall not
apply to any questioning, counseling, instruction, informal verbal admonishment or other routine
or unplanned contact of a member in the normal course of duty, by a supervisor or any other
member, nor shall this policy apply to a criminal investigation.

1014.2   POLICY
Best Practice  MODIFIED

This district takes seriously all complaints regarding service provided by the District and the
conduct of its members.

The District will accept and address all complaints of member misconduct in accordance with this
policy and applicable federal, state and local law, municipal and county rules and the requirements
of any memorandum of understanding.

It is also the policy of this district to ensure that the community can report misconduct without
concern for reprisal or retaliation.

1014.3   PERSONNEL COMPLAINTS
Best Practice

Personnel complaints consist of any allegation of misconduct or improper job performance that, if
true, would constitute a violation of district policy or rule or federal, state or local law. Allegations
or complaints may be generated internally or by the public.

Inquiries about conduct or performance that, if true, would not violate district policy or rule or
federal, state or local law, may be handled informally by a supervisor and shall not be considered
a personnel complaint. Such inquiries generally include clarification regarding policy, procedures
or the response to specific incidents by the District.

1014.4   AVAILABILITY AND ACCEPTANCE OF COMPLAINTS
Best Practice

1014.4.1   AVAILABILITY OF COMPLAINT FORMS
Best Practice  MODIFIED

Personnel complaint forms will be available and clearly visible in public access locations within
facilities and on the district website.

Every supervisor is responsible for monitoring public satisfaction or inquiries regarding the
personnel complaint process and forwarding to the Battalion Chief or other supervisor any
suggestions for improvement or changes.



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

Personnel Complaints

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Personnel Complaints - 2

See attachment: Citizen Concern or Complaint Form.pdf

See attachment: Employee Concern or Complaint Form.pdf

1014.4.2   SOURCES OF COMPLAINTS
Best Practice  MODIFIED

(a) Members of the public may make complaints in any form, including in writing, by email,
in person or by telephone.

(b) Any district member becoming aware of alleged misconduct shall immediately notify
their immediate supervisor and second-line supervisor.

(c) Supervisors shall initiate a complaint based upon observed misconduct or receipt from
any source alleging the misconduct of a member that, if true, could result in corrective
action.

(d) Anonymous complaints and third-party citizen complaints should be accepted and
investigated to the extent that sufficient information is provided.

(e) Citizen complaints regarding code enforcement are not considered personnel
complaints and shall be forwarded to the Fire Prevention Department.

1014.4.3   ACCEPTANCE OF COMPLAINTS
Best Practice  MODIFIED

All complaints will be courteously accepted by any member and promptly given to the appropriate
supervisor. Although written complaints are preferred, a complaint may also be filed verbally, either
in person or by telephoning the District, and will be accepted by any supervisor. If a supervisor is
not immediately available to take a verbal complaint, the receiving member shall obtain contact
information sufficient for the supervisor to contact the complainant. The supervisor, upon contact
with the complainant, shall complete and submit a Citizen Complaint Form as appropriate.

The Fire Chief or the authorized designee shall be notified of all citizen complaints.

Although not required, complainants should be encouraged to file complaints in person so that
proper identification, signatures, photographs or physical evidence may be obtained as necessary.

Supervisors shall ensure that all complaints are documented on the appropriate complaint form.
The supervisor shall ensure that thte nature of the complaint is defined as clearly as possible.

1014.5   DISCIPLINARY INVESTIGATIONS
Best Practice

All allegations of misconduct will be investigated as follows:

1014.5.1   SUPERVISOR RESPONSIBILITIES
Best Practice  MODIFIED

(a) District supervisors should respond to all complaints in a courteous and professional
manner.



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

Personnel Complaints

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Personnel Complaints - 3

(b) A supervisor receiving a complaint involving allegations of a potentially serious nature
shall ensure that the Battalion Chief, Assistant Chief/Director and Fire Chief are
notified as soon as practicable.

(c) A supervisor should:

1. Make reasonable efforts to obtain names, addresses and telephone numbers of
additional witnesses.

2. When appropriate, provide immediate medical attention and take photographs
of alleged injuries as well as accessible areas of non-injury.

(d) When the nature of a personnel complaint relates to sexual, racial, ethnic or
other forms of prohibited harassment or discrimination, the supervisor receiving
the complaint shall promptly contact the Department of Human Resources and the
Battalion Chief, Assistant Chief/Director, or Fire Chief for direction regarding his/her
role in addressing the complaint.

(e) Supervisors who receive a citizen complaint that can be resolved immediately should
do so. Follow-up contact with the person who made the complaint should be made
within 24 hours of the District receiving the complaint. If the matter is resolved and no
further action is required, the supervisor will note the resolution on a complaint form
and forward the form to the Battalion Chief, Assistant Chief/Director, or Fire Chief.

1014.5.2   INVESTIGATION PROCEDURES
Best Practice  MODIFIED

The following procedures should be followed with regard to any accused member subject to
investigation by the District:

(a) Prior to any interview, the member should be informed of the nature of the
investigation.

(b) Interviews of accused members should be conducted during reasonable work hours
of the member and, if the member is off-duty, the member shall be compensated if
required.

(c) No more than two interviewers should ask questions of an accused member to prevent
confusion or misunderstanding.

(d) All interviews shall be for a reasonable period or duration and the member’s personal
needs shall be accommodated.

(e) No member shall be subjected to offensive or threatening language nor shall any
promises, rewards or other inducements be used to obtain answers. Any member
refusing to answer questions directly related to the investigation may be ordered to
answer questions and subject to discipline for failing to do so. Nothing administratively
ordered may be provided to a criminal investigator.

(f) The interviewer should record all interviews of members and witnesses. The member
may also record the interview.

(g) A member subjected to interviews that could result in punitive action shall have the
right to have a representative of his/her choosing during any interrogation. However,
in order to maintain the integrity of each individual member’s statement, involved



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

Personnel Complaints

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Personnel Complaints - 4

members shall not consult or meet with representatives or attorneys collectively or in
groups prior to being interviewed, however, members may meet individually with their
representatives.

(h) All members shall provide complete and truthful responses to questions posed during
interviews.

(i) The SFMD will not use or compel any member to submit to a polygraph examination,
nor shall any refusal to submit to such examination be mentioned in any investigation.

1014.5.3   INVESTIGATION FORMAT
Best Practice  MODIFIED

Investigations of complaints should be timely, detailed, complete and follow this format:

Introduction - Include the identity of the member, the identity of the assigned investigators, the
initial date and source of the complaint.

Synopsis - Provide a very brief summary of the facts giving rise to the investigation.

Summary of allegations - List the allegations separately, including applicable policy sections,
with a very brief summary of the evidence relevant to each allegation.

Evidence as to each allegation - Each allegation should be set forth with the details of the
evidence applicable to each allegation and include comprehensive summaries of member and
witness statements. Other evidence related to each allegation should also be detailed in this
section.

Conclusion - A recommendation regarding further action or disposition should be provided.

Exhibits - A separate list of exhibits (e.g., recordings, photos, documents) should be attached
to the report.

1014.5.4   ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE
Best Practice  MODIFIED

When a complaint of misconduct is of a serious nature, or when circumstances dictate that allowing
the accused to continue to work would adversely affect the mission of the District, the Fire Chief
or the authorized designee may temporarily assign an accused employee to administrative leave.
The Fire Chief or the authorized designee shall notify the Department of Human Resources in
writing of the employee’s administrative leave and the cause for the leave.

See attachment: Administrative Leave Agreement.pdf

1014.6   POST-INVESTIGATION PROCEDURES
Best Practice  MODIFIED

Upon completion, the report should be forwarded to the Fire Chief through the chain of command
of the involved member. Each level of command should review and include their comments in
writing before forwarding the report. The Fire Chief may accept or modify the classification and
recommendation for disciplinary action contained in the report.



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

Personnel Complaints

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Personnel Complaints - 5

1014.6.1   ASSISTANT CHIEF/DIRECTOR RESPONSIBILITIES
Best Practice

Upon receipt of any completed personnel investigation, the Assistant Chief/Director of the involved
member shall review the entire investigative file, the member’s personnel file and any other
relevant materials.

The Assistant Chief/Director may make recommendations regarding the disposition of any
allegations and the amount of discipline, if any, to be imposed.

Prior to forwarding recommendations to the Fire Chief, the Assistant Chief/Director may return the
entire investigation to the assigned investigator or supervisor for further investigation or action.

When forwarding any written recommendation to the Fire Chief, the Assistant Chief/Director
shall include all relevant materials supporting the recommendation. Actual copies of a member’s
existing personnel file need not be provided and may be incorporated by reference.

1014.6.2   RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE FIRE CHIEF
Best Practice  MODIFIED

Upon receipt of any written recommendation for disciplinary action, the Fire Chief shall
review the recommendation and all accompanying materials. The Fire Chief may modify any
recommendation and/or may return the file to the Assistant Chief/Director for further investigation
or action.

Once the Fire Chief is satisfied that no further investigation or action is required by staff, the Fire
Chief shall determine the amount of discipline, if any, to be imposed. In the event that disciplinary
action is proposed, the Fire Chief shall provide the member with written notice of the following
information:

(a) Access to all of the materials considered by the Fire Chief in recommending the
proposed discipline.

(b) An opportunity to respond verbally or in writing to the Fire Chief within 14 days of
receiving the notice.

1. Upon a showing of good cause by the member, the Fire Chief may grant a
reasonable extension of time for the member to respond.

2. If the member elects to respond verbally, the presentation shall be recorded by
the District. The member may also record the presentation for reference.

(c) Once the member has completed their response, or if the member has elected to waive
any such response, the Fire Chief shall consider all information received in regard to
the recommended discipline. The Fire Chief shall thereafter render a written decision
within 14 days to the member and specify the grounds and reasons for discipline and
the effective date of the discipline. Once the Fire Chief has issued a written decision,
the discipline shall become effective.

1014.7   PRE-DISCIPLINE MEMBER RESPONSE
Best Practice  MODIFIED



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

Personnel Complaints

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Personnel Complaints - 6

The pre-discipline process is intended to provide the accused member with an opportunity to
present a written or verbal response to the Fire Chief after having had an opportunity to review the
supporting materials and prior to imposition of any recommended discipline. The member shall
consider the following:

(a) This response is not intended to be an adversarial or formal hearing.

(b) Although the member may be represented by an uninvolved representative or legal
counsel, the response is not designed to accommodate the presentation of testimony
or witnesses.

(c) The member may suggest that further investigation could be conducted or the member
may offer any additional information or mitigating factors for the Fire Chief to consider.

(d) In the event that the Fire Chief elects to cause further investigation to be conducted,
the member shall be provided with the results of such subsequent investigation prior
to the imposition of any discipline.

(e) The member may thereafter have the opportunity to further respond verbally or in
writing to the Fire Chief on the limited issues of information raised in any subsequent
materials.

1014.8   RESIGNATIONS/RETIREMENTS PRIOR TO DISCIPLINE
Best Practice

In the event that a member tenders a written retirement or resignation prior to the imposition of
discipline, it shall be noted in the file. The tender of a retirement or resignation by itself shall not
serve as grounds for the termination of any pending investigation or discipline.

1014.9   POST-DISCIPLINE APPEAL RIGHTS
Best Practice  MODIFIED

Non-probationary members may appeal a suspension without pay, punitive transfer, demotion,
reduction in pay or step and termination from employment. The member may appeal using the
procedures established in any operative memorandum of understanding and/or personnel rules.

Office of Administrative Hearings (OAH), State of Arizona

The governing board, through an intergovernmental service agreement has retained the Office of
Administrative Hearings (OAH), State of Arizona, for the purpose of conducting appeal hearings
under these rules. The OAH will appoint a competent and experienced administrative law judge
(ALJ) according to the expertise of the ALJ to hear the appeal. All appeal hearings will be held at
the Phoenix location of the OAH. The ALJ should determine if the appeal is allowed under SFMD
Volume I and should not consider appeals not covered by these rules. The appointed ALJ of the
OAH will conduct a fair and impartial hearing for all parties concerned under the general guidance
of the Uniform Administrative Hearing Procedures of Title 41 and the rules of the OAH.

For information on an appeal hearing, reference the attached Appeal Hearing Procedure.

See attachment: Appeal Hearing Procedure.pdf



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

Personnel Complaints

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Personnel Complaints - 7

1014.10   AT-WILL AND PROBATIONARY MEMBERS
Best Practice  MODIFIED

At-will and probationary members may be disciplined and/or released from employment without
adherence to any of the procedures set out in this policy and without notice or any cause at any
time. These members are not entitled to any rights under this policy.

Any probationary period may be extended at the discretion of the Fire Chief in cases where the
member has been absent for more than a week or when additional time to review the member
is considered to be appropriate.



Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Attachments - 8

Attachments



Attachment
Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Citizen Concern or Complaint Form.pdf - 9

Citizen Concern or Complaint Form.pdf
Citizen Concern or Complaint Form.pdf



1 of 1 

Citizen Concern/Complaint Form 

 

Citizen Name:  Date:  

Citizen Contact Information:  

Concern/Complaint Received by Supervisor:  

 

Description of 
Concern /  

Complaint: 
(Rule or Policy 

Violation) 

 

Objective:  

Solution(s):  

Comments:  

 

Employee Signature:  Date:  

Supervisor Signature:  Date:  

 

Disposition:  

 Resolved             Unresolved             Requires Action           Chain of Command           Tabled       

 



Attachment
Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Employee Concern or Complaint Form.pdf - 10

Employee Concern or Complaint Form.pdf
Employee Concern or Complaint Form.pdf



1 of 1 

Employee Concern/Complaint Form 

 

Employee Name:  Date:  

Job Title:  Supervisor:  

 

Description of 
Concern /  

Complaint: 
(Rule or Policy 

Violation) 

 

Objective:  

Solution(s):  

Comments:  

 

Employee Signature:  Date:  

Supervisor Signature:  Date:  

 

Disposition:  

 Resolved             Unresolved             Requires Action           Chain of Command           Tabled       

 



Attachment
Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Administrative Leave Agreement.pdf - 11

Administrative Leave Agreement.pdf
Administrative Leave Agreement.pdf



 

Superstition Fire & Medical District 
Administrative Leave Agreement 

 

Employee Name:  Date:  

Job Title:  Supervisor:  

 

The Fire Chief may authorize administrative leave when it is believed to be in the best interest of the District and/or its 
employee(s). Administrative leave serves to protect the confidentiality of both employees and the organization and is intended to 
help preserve the reliability and accuracy of information collected during an investigation. Administrative leave may be necessary 
when the fire chief determines an investigation or fact-finding mission is warranted and where the integrity of that investigation 
could be compromised by employee contact. 
 
An employee placed on administrative leave shall be “retrievable” and able to respond to a request from the organization within 
a reasonable time frame as defined in this administrative leave agreement. In most cases, requests from SFMD will be scheduled 
during traditional business hours which include Monday – Friday, 7:00 a.m. – 6:00 p.m. Although rare, some meetings may have 
to occur outside this time frame if the SFMD determines it necessary. 
 
This agreement may be altered or edited at the request of either party to tailor its contents and conditions to better befit the 
nature of the investigation and/or the interests of the parties involved.  
 
SFMD understands circumstances may occur outside one’s control that could prohibit an employee from meeting some of the 
requirements in this agreement. Those circumstances will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis with the understanding that the 
employee is duty-bound to make every reasonable effort to adhere to these conditions. 
 
For the purposes of this agreement, the following conditions will apply: 

Conditions of Administrative Leave 
Employee 

Initials 
HR 

Initials 

1. I understand that while on administrative leave, I should have no unauthorized contact with 
another SFMD employee (within my control) and that I am restricted from visiting any SFMD 
work site. This includes contact via social media. I also understand that should it become 
necessary to contact the SFMD that I may only contact the persons authorized in this 
agreement under Condition #3. 

  

2. I understand that only the following persons are authorized as primary points of contact for 
the SFMD, this includes an employee representative (if utilized) 
Contact #1: ___________________________________________________ 
Contact #2: ___________________________________________________ 

  

3. I understand during this administrative leave I will generally be required to be at “home” 
during my regularly scheduled work time and that this condition may be subject to 
verification by telephone, home visit or by some other means. 

  

4. I claim the following address(s) as “home” during the course of this leave: 
_________________________________________________________________ 

  

5. I understand that I must utilize earned leave for any personal obligations, travel or business 
that requires my presence outside my home during my regularly scheduled work shift. I also 
acknowledge that I must first notify and obtain authorization from the HR Director or his/her 
designee before such leave is utilized. Prescheduled vacation or other obligations will be 
reasonably accommodated whenever possible to do so. 

  



 

Superstition Fire & Medical District 
Administrative Leave Agreement 

 

Conditions of Administrative Leave 
Employee 

Initials 
HR 

Initials 

6. I’m claiming the following date(s) as “prescheduled vacation” as verified with TeleStaff and/or 
my supervisor: 
_________________________________________________________________ 

  

7. I understand that while on administrative leave during my normal work hours I am considered 
to be “at-work” and “on-duty” and therefore subject to all applicable federal, state and local 
laws and SFMD policies and procedures. 

  

8. I understand that I must be “retrievable” during the course of this administrative leave and 
that my presence may be requested by SFMD at any time to facilitate the administration of 
this investigation. Retrievable will imply that when my presence or response is requested by 
my employer that I am (within reason) willing and able to respond to phone calls, text 
messages, voice mail messages and/or respond in-person to a designated meeting location. 

  

9. I claim the following “personal obligations” that may prevent me from being retrievable 
during my administrative leave and which may prevent me from meeting some of the 
obligations stipulated in this agreement: 
 
 
 

  

10. The following are “other conditions” that may prevent me from being retrievable during my 
administrative leave and which may prevent me from meeting some of the obligations 
stipulated in this agreement: 
 
 
 

  

11. For purposes of this agreement, I agree to one of the following: 

 Phone, voice or text communications within 1 hour. 

 Requests for in-person meetings within 1 hour 30 minutes. 

 I have been temporarily assigned to a 40-hour work week (M-Th, 0700-1800). 

  

12. I understand any time I’m requested to be on-site and meet in-person outside my regularly 
scheduled work time, I will be compensated in accordance with SFMD payroll practices which 
may result in compensation at one and one half times my normal rate of pay. 

  

13. I acknowledge that I have been advised of the reason(s) for this administrative leave. I have 
been advised of the following: 
 
 
 

  

 

Employee Signature:  Date:  

Witness Signature:  Date:  

 



Attachment
Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Appeal Hearing Procedure.pdf - 12

Appeal Hearing Procedure.pdf
Appeal Hearing Procedure.pdf



SFMD Appeal Hearing Procedure 1 of 4 

SFMD Appeal Hearing Procedure 

 

Right of Appeal 

1. Only those matters subject to a formal grievance proceeding should be eligible for an appeal hearing. 

2. The governing board, through an intergovernmental service agreement has retained the Office of Administrative 

Hearings (OAH), State of Arizona, for the purpose of conducting appeal hearings under these rules. 

3. The OAH will appoint a competent and experienced administrative law judge (ALJ) according to the expertise of 

the AJL to hear the appeal. 

4. All appeal hearings will be held at the Phoenix location of the OAH. 

5. The ALJ should determine if the appeal is allowed under SFMD Volume I and should not consider appeals not 

covered by these rules. 

6. The appointed ALJ of the OAH will conduct a fair and impartial hearing for all parties concerned under the 

general guidance of the Uniform Administrative Hearing Procedures of Title 41 and the rules of the OAH. 

 

Method of Appeal 

Requests for an appeal hearing shall be in writing and must be filed with HR within five (5) working days of the final 

decision of the Fire Chief in a matter presented as a formal grievance. 

The request for an appeal hearing should be clearly explain the matter appealed, and should set forth a brief summary 

of the final action taken by the Fire Chief as well as the employee’s reasons for disagreeing with that final action. 

 

Notice 

Upon receipt of the request for an appeal hearing, HR will contact the OAH who should schedule a time for an appeal 

hearing for a date not to exceed 45 days of a request from the fire district. 

HR will provide written notification to the respective parties of the scheduled hearing, incorporating the date, time, and 

location of the hearing as scheduled by the OAH, including notice that the matter has been transferred to the OAH 

pursuant to this rule. 

 

Procedure 

1. Pre-Hearing Procedure 

a. Pre-Hearing Statements 

i. Upon receipt of the request for an appeal hearing HR should provide each party to the appeal a 

pre-hearing statement form to be completed by each party.  The pre-hearing statement should 

include the following: 

ii. The names, addresses, and phone numbers of all parties to the appeal 

iii. The names, addresses, and phone numbers of legal counsel or representatives for the parties. 

iv. A list of witnesses including addresses and phone numbers, and brief summaries of their 

testimony. 

v. A description of the exhibits to be used at hearing. 



SFMD Appeal Hearing Procedure 2 of 4 

vi. A statement of the facts supporting the party’s position. 

b. The completed pre-hearing statement should be filed with the ALJ within ten working days of receipt by 

the parties of the pre-hearting statement form. 

c. Each party to the appeal should provide the opposing party with a copy of the pre-hearing statement 

and copies of exhibits to be used within ten (10) working days of the receipt of the pre-hearing 

statement.  Each party is responsible for keeping the ALJ and the opposing party updated on additional 

witnesses and exhibits through the use of an amended pre-hearing statement.  The party amending the 

pre-hearing statement should submit on copy to the ALJ and should provide the opposing party with a 

copy of the amended statement and a copy of additional exhibits, if any. 

d. Under no circumstances should witness or exhibits be added within five (5) working days of the hearing.  

Not witness testimony or exhibits should be admissible if not identified by the proponent five (5) 

working days prior to the necessary for rebuttal or impeachment. 

 

2. Timing of Motions 

Absent good cause, or unless otherwise provided by law, these rules or the rules for the OAH, written motions 

will be filed with the OAH at least 15 days before the hearing. 

A party should file a written response stating any objection to the emotion within 5 days of service, or as 

directed by the ALJ. 

 

Pre-Hearing Motions 

Any party to an appeal may file a pre-hearing motion.  Motions should be in writing and should set forth the specific 

action requested of the ALJ and basis for the requested action.  The ALJ should rule an all pre-hearing motions submitted 

in the pre-hearing conference or in the course of the hearing.  The ALJ ruling on motions should be reflected in the ALJ 

findings. 

 

Motion for Summary Judgment 

In instances where there is no genuine issue of material fact in dispute, either party may request by written motion that 

the ALJ rule on the entire matter which is the subject of the appeal or any portion of the matter which is the subject of 

the appeal.  The ALJ may rule on a motion for summary judgment prior to or in the course of the hearing.  The ALJ ruling 

on motions for summary judgment should be reflected in the ALJ findings. 

 

Submission in Good Faith 

The person submitting a motion, pre-hearing statement or other document in the appeal process is obligated to do so in 

good faith.  Factual statements shall be deemed given under oath or penalty of perjury. 

 

Pre-Hearing Conference 

After acceptance of an appeal and designation of representatives, if any, the ALJ may, at the request of the parties or on 

own initiative, schedule a pre-hearing conference at a time convenient to all parties. 



SFMD Appeal Hearing Procedure 3 of 4 

At the pre-hearing conferences the ALJ may request exhibits, define the issues, and accept stipulations of the parties.  

The ALJ may rule on the admissibility of disapprove witnesses whose testimony is irrelevant or cumulative. 

 

Appeal Hearing Procedure 

1. Confidentiality 

a. Unless otherwise provided by law, all hearings are open to the public. 

b. The appealing employee should appear personally, unless physically unable to do so, before the ALJ at 

the time and place of the hearing. 

c. The appealing employee may be represented by an attorney or any person other than a member of 

SFMD HR, the Fire Chief’s Office, or a member of the SFMD Governing Board. 

 

2. Order, Burden, and Manner of Proof 

a. The ALJ may commence the hearing with the consideration of any pending motions or procedural 

matters. 

b. The ALJ may request each party to make a brief opening statement. 

c. The employee initiating the appeal should proceed next by presenting evidence by testimony or 

document or a combination thereof supporting their basis of the appeal.  The employee is directed to 

show that the employment action taken was not reasonable. 

d. The administration should proceed by its Fire Chief or legal counsel or a combination thereof, by 

presenting evidence by testimony or document or combination or thereof supporting the action taken 

which is the subject of the appeal or rebutting the presentation of the employee.  The administration is 

directed to show that the employment action taken was reasonable. 

e. The ALJ may allow rebuttal evidence to be presented by either party before the ALJ. 

f. Direct testimony should be presented under penalty or perjury, supported oath of affirmation.  Cross 

examination should be allowed.  Hearings need not be conducted according to technical rules relating 

the evidence and witnesses. 

g. The conduct and decorum of the hearing should be under the control of the ALJ, with due regard for the 

rights and privileges of the parties and witnesses appearing before it. 

h. The burden of proof should be by a preponderance of evidence. 

i. The ALJ may request each party to give a closing statement. 

j. The ALJ, in their discretion, may continue postpone or reschedule the hearing at any time. 

k. The ALJ should consider the matter and may render their decision immediately following the 

presentation of evidence or at a later date.  The ALJ may request any party to submit its proposed 

findings for the ALJ consideration. 

 

Record of the Proceedings 

The OAH will create a digital record of the hearing proceedings suitable for transcription.  If a copy of the transcript is 

requested by either party to the appeal, the OAH will arrange for transcription and the requesting party will be 

responsible. 

 

Findings of the ALJ 



SFMD Appeal Hearing Procedure 4 of 4 

1. At the conclusion of the hearing, the ALJ should prepare written findings of fact reflecting the evidence 

presented, and should prepare written conclusions of law that affirm, reverse or modify the final action of the 

Fire Chief complained of in the appeal. 

2. If the ALJ determines the appealed action was arbitrary or taken without reasonable cause, the action  

3. The decision of the ALJ should be final and binding upon both the employee and the SFMD, and therefore, not 

subject to further administrative appeal to any office or governing body of the SFMD. 

4. The findings of fact and conclusions of law should be transmitted to the fire district by the OAH within 20 days of 

the conclusion of the hearing. 



Policy

1020
Superstition Fire & Medical District

Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Grievance Procedure - 1

Grievance Procedure
1020.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
Best Practice  MODIFIED

This policy establishes processes for resolving disputes or concerns regarding conditions of
employment, unethical or wasteful conduct or other inappropriate conduct.

This policy does not apply to complaints related to alleged acts of discrimination or harassment
or complaints of discrimination on the basis of other protected categories subject to the
Discriminatory Harassment Policy. This policy also does not apply to complaints consisting of any
alleged misconduct or improper job performance by any member that, if true, would constitute a
violation of federal, state or local law, or a violation of district policy or the standards established
in the Personnel Complaints Policy.

This policy does not prohibit adverse administrative action taken for legitimate nondiscriminatory
or non-retaliatory reasons, including for-cause discipline.

The procedures set forth herein are intended to supplement and not limit a member’s access to
other applicable remedies. Nothing in this policy shall diminish the rights or remedies of a member
pursuant to any applicable federal law, provision of the U.S. Constitution, state law, local ordinance
or memorandum of understanding.

1020.1.1   GRIEVANCE DEFINED
Best Practice  MODIFIED

A grievance is any difference of opinion concerning terms or conditions of employment or a dispute
involving the interpretation or application of any of the following documents:

• A memorandum of understanding

• This Policy Manual

• Rules and regulations covering personnel practices or working conditions of members

A grievance includes any claim of waste, abuse of authority, or gross mismanagement and any
practice within the District which may pose a threat to health, safety or security.

Grievances may be brought by an individual member or by a group representative.

1020.2   POLICY
Best Practice

It is the policy of this district that all grievances be handled quickly and fairly without retaliation
against a member who files a grievance, whether or not there is a basis for the grievance. It
is the philosophy of this district to promote free verbal communication between members and
supervisors.

1020.3   RETALIATION PROHIBITED
Best Practice



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

Grievance Procedure

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Grievance Procedure - 2

No member may retaliate against any person for reporting or making a complaint under this policy
or for opposing a practice believed to be improper, unethical, wasteful or retaliatory or participating
in any investigation pursuant to this policy or any other policy in this Policy Manual (see the Anti-
Retaliation Policy).

Employees found to be in violation of this policy are subject to discipline. Supervisors who condone
or ignore violations of this policy or otherwise fail to take appropriate action to enforce this policy
are also subject to discipline.

1020.4   PROCEDURE
Best Practice  MODIFIED

Except as otherwise required under a memorandum of understanding, grievances, as defined
above, should be resolved using the following procedure or as stated in the memorandum of
understanding.

1020.4.1   COMMUNICATING GRIEVANCES
Best Practice

Members are encouraged to communicate with supervisory personnel regarding any workplace
problem or issue they feel needs immediate attention. Generally, any concern about a workplace
situation should be first raised with the member’s immediate supervisor unless that supervisor is
part of the member’s concern. It is recognized, however, that there may be occasions where the
use of the normal chain of command may not be appropriate.

Any member who feels threatened in any manner or is otherwise concerned about reporting to his/
her immediate supervisor may report this information directly to the Fire Chief or Department of
Human Resources without first reporting the information to their immediate supervisor or following
the chain of command.

This alternate process shall not be used to circumvent or avoid addressing issues through the
normal chain of command.

1020.4.2   GRIEVANCE RECEIPT
Best Practice  MODIFIED

Upon receipt of a verbal or written grievance, the receiving supervisor will promptly document the
grievance on the Employee Grievance Form, initiate the investigative process and ensure that the
appropriate supervisor and the Department of Human Resources are notified.

See attachment: Employee Grievance Form.pdf

Investigations are generally more effective when the identity of the grieving member is known,
thereby allowing investigators to obtain additional information from the reporting member.
However, a grievance may be made anonymously.

All reasonable efforts should be made to protect the reporting member’s identity. However,
confidential information may be disclosed to the extent required by law or to the degree necessary
to conduct an adequate investigation and make a determination regarding a grievance. In some



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

Grievance Procedure

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Grievance Procedure - 3

situations, the investigative process may not be complete unless the source of the information and
a statement by the member is produced as part of the process.

The supervisor receiving the grievance should explain to the grieving member how the matter will
be handled.

1020.4.3   RESOLVING GRIEVANCES
Best Practice  MODIFIED

(a) Supervisors receiving grievances should attempt to resolve the issue through informal
discussion with the member.

(b) If after a reasonable amount of time, generally ten days, the grievance cannot be
settled by the immediate supervisor, the member may request a meeting with the
second-line supervisor.

(c) If a successful resolution is not found with the second-line supervisor, the member
may request a meeting with the Fire Chief.

(d) If the member and the Fire Chief are unable to arrive at a mutual solution, then the
member shall proceed as follows:

1. Submit a written statement of the grievance and deliver one copy to the Fire
Chief and another copy to the immediate supervisor and include the following
information:

(a) The basis for the grievance

(b) What remedy or goal is being sought by this grievance

(e) The Fire Chief will receive the written grievance. The Fire Chief will review and analyze
the facts or allegations and respond to the member within 14 calendar days. The
response shall identify any corrective measures or other remedies as appropriate. The
decision of the Fire Chief is considered final.

1020.5   RESPONSIBILITIES
Best Practice

1020.5.1   MEMBER RESPONSIBILITIES
Best Practice  MODIFIED

This policy is intended to support efforts to identify and remediate workplace issues appropriately.
Members are encouraged to identify workplace issues to bring about positive change in the
District. Members shall act in good faith and not file trivial grievances or grievances intended to
harass or deflect scrutiny or blame to another member.

Members shall make reasonable efforts to verify facts before making a grievance. Members shall
not report or threaten to report information or a grievance knowing it to be false, with willful or
reckless regard for the truth or falsity of the information or otherwise made in bad faith.

When making a grievance, members should provide as much information as possible and should
cooperate fully with all investigations. Members shall maintain the confidentiality of any statements



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

Grievance Procedure

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Grievance Procedure - 4

made in conjunction with an active grievance pursuant to this policy. This provision is not intended
to diminish a member’s rights or remedies afforded by applicable federal law, constitutional
provision or memorandum of understanding.

Any employee who believes that he/she has been subjected to reprisal or retaliation should
immediately report the matter to a supervisor in the member’s chain of command or to the
Department of Human Resources.

1020.5.2   SUPERVISOR RESPONSIBILITIES
Best Practice  MODIFIED

Supervisors should make reasonable efforts to identify and remediate workplace issues and bring
about positive change in the District before issues escalate to the grievance level. Once a member
has made the decision to file a grievance, supervisors shall not attempt to discourage the member,
shall accept grievances and shall ensure that reasonable efforts are made to reach a prompt and
fair resolution.

Supervisory personnel will:

(a) Document all grievances received and all steps taken to resolve the issue.

(b) Forward the documentation to the Administrative Services Assistant Chief/Director
through the chain of command.

(c) Monitor the work environment to ensure that any member making a grievance is
treated with respect and no different than any other employee.

(d) Communicate to all members the obligation not to engage in retaliation and follow-up
periodically with the grieving member to ensure that retaliation is not occurring.

1020.5.3   COMMAND STAFF RESPONSIBILITIES
Best Practice

Command staff should ensure prompt resolution of all grievances, including the following:

(a) Timely grievance recognition and acceptance

(b) Appropriate documentation of the process and investigation

(c) Remediation of any inappropriate conduct or condition and the implementation of
measures to minimize the likelihood of reoccurrence

(d) Timely communication of the outcome to the grieving member

1020.6   MEMBER REPRESENTATION
Best Practice

Members are entitled to have representation during the grievance process and may seek advice,
counsel or the assistance of other employees or representatives in their presentation of a
grievance.



Superstition Fire & Medical District
Policy Manual

Grievance Procedure

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Grievance Procedure - 5

1020.7   GRIEVANCE RECORDS
Best Practice  MODIFIED

At the conclusion of the grievance process, all documents pertaining to the process shall be
forwarded to the Assistant Chief and Administrative Services Director for records retention.



Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Attachments - 6

Attachments



Attachment
Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2020/02/12, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Superstition Fire & Medical
District

***DRAFT*** Employee Grievance Form.pdf - 7

Employee Grievance Form.pdf
Employee Grievance Form.pdf



Employee Grievance Form 1 of 1 

Employee Grievance Form 

 

Employee Name (may be left blank):  Date:  

Job Title:  Supervisor:  

 

Use this form when: A grievance is any difference of opinion concerning terms or conditions of employment, or a 
dispute involving the interpretation or application of any of the following documents: 

 Memorandum of Understanding 

 The Policy Manual 

 Rules and regulations covering personnel practices or working conditions of 
members 

Description of 
Grievance: 
 Claim of waste 

 Abuse of authority 

 Gross mismanagement 

 Health, safety, and 
security concerns 

 

Solution(s):  

 

Disposition:  

 Resolved             Unresolved             Requires Action           Chain of Command           Tabled       

 

Comments:  

 


	0.0 February 2020 Cover Page
	0.1 Board Agenda
	1.0 February 2020 Blurb Financials 1
	1.1 2020 February Financial Statements and Bank Rec Sig Page 1
	2.0 February Blurb Service Awards 2
	3.0 2020-02 Blurb Call to Public  3
	4.0 2020-02 Blurb Consent Agenda 4
	5.0 2020 Blurb FY 20-21 Tax Abstract 5
	5.1 - Pinal and MAricopa Levy Limit Worksheets
	6.0 Blurb PSPRS Actuarial Update
	6.1 - PSPRS CAFR Highlights - 6.30.19
	6.2 - SFMD GASB 68 Executive Summary - 6.30.19
	6.3 - SFMD PSPRS Actuarial Valuation Summary - 6.30.19
	7.0 Policies for Approval Blurb
	8.0 Policies for Review Blurb
	9.0 Blurb Health Equity Integration with Nationwide
	9.1 HealthEquity Nationwide Integration
	10.0 Reports Blurb
	11.0 Blurb New Business - Future Agenda Items
	12.0 Announcements Blurb
	13.0 Adjournment Blurb
	Appendix A Blurb 2020-2-19  Board Minutes
	Appendix A.1 2020-1-15 BOD Minutes
	Governing Board Meeting Minutes
	THIS MEETING WAS OPEN TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC AND BEGAN AT 5:30 PM.


	Appendix C Blurb Insurance Renewal
	Appendix C.1 Cindy Elbert Insurance Documents
	Appendix D Blurb State Land Rate Schedule
	Appendix D.1 - Wildland Cooperative Rate Schedule
	Appendix E Phoenix NAP Contract Renewal
	Appendix E.1 PhoenixNAP Contract Renewal 2020-02
	Appendix F LifePac 15 Heart Monitor
	Appendix F.1 Monitor Documents
	Appendix G8 Policies for Review
	Appendix G8.1 0600_Fire_Apparatus_Driver_Operator_Training
	Appendix G8.2 0601_CPR_and_Automated_External_Defibrillator_Training
	Appendix G8.3 0602_Communicable_Disease_Training_Program
	Appendix G8.4 0603_Emergency_Action_Plan_and_Fire_Prevention_Plan_Training
	Appendix G8.5 0604_Hazard_Communication_Program_Training
	Appendix G8.6 0605_Hazardous_Materials__HAZMAT__Training
	Appendix G8.7 0606_Hearing_Conservation_and_Noise_Control_Training
	Appendix G8.8 0607_Heat_Illness_Prevention_Training
	Appendix G8.9 0608_Health_Insurance_Portability_and_Accountability_Act__HIPAA__Training
	Appendix G8.10 0609_National_Incident_Management_System__NIMS__Training
	Appendix G8.11 0611_Respiratory_Protection_Training
	Appendix G8.12 0612_Wildland_Fire_Shelter_Deployment_Training
	Appendix G8.13 0613_Training_Records
	Appendix G8.14 0614_Firefighter_Health__Safety_and_Survival_Training
	Appendix G8.15 1014_Personnel_Complaints
	Appendix G8.16 1020_Grievance_Procedure

